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Vision & Mission Statements

 
  

.

                 

THE VISION                .

 
To be the leader in Sugar Industry by building the Companys’ image through 
quality improvement, customers’ satisfaction and by maintaining a high level of

 

Ethical and Professional Standards through the Optimum use of Resources.

 

                

THE MISSION                .
 

 
 

Endeavoring to be the market leader by enhancing market share and to conduct 
business in the best possible manner by using high level of Ethical and 
Professional Standards.

 
 

 Seeking long term and good trading relations with customers and suppliers with 
fair, honest and mutually profitable dealings. 

 
Building an excellent repute of our organization and to maintain high 
professional and ethical standards with eyes on the future.

 

 

Offering high quality products according to the highest international standards.

 

 

Continuous enhancement in shareholders’ value through teamwork and constant 
improvement in performance in all operating areas in a competitive business 
environment.

 

 

Providing congenial work environment, where employees are treated with respect 
and dignity and work as a team for common goals.

 

 

Contributing to the national economy by uplifting and skills diversification of the 
people through fulfillment of our social responsibilities.
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HASEEB WAQAS SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

 Chairman's Review
 

 A Review Report by the Chairman on Board's overall performance and effec�veness of role played by 
the Board in achieving the Company's objec�ves u/s 192 of the Companies Act 2017:

 
 As required under the

 

Code of Corporate Governance, an annual evalua�on of the Board of Directors 
(the “Board”) of Haseeb Waqas Sugar Mills Limited

 

(the “Company”) is carried out. The purpose of this 
evalua�on is to ensure that the Board's overall performance and effec�vene ss is measured and 
benchmarked against expecta�ons in the context of objec�ves set for the Company. Areas where 
improvements are required are duly considered and ac�on plans are framed

 
 I am pleased to present the Annual Review for the year ended 30 September 2018,

 

 
The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Haseeb Waqas Sugar Mills Limited, has performed their 
du�es diligently in upholding the best interest of shareholders' of the Company and has 
managed the affairs of the Company in an effec�ve and effi cient manner.

 

 The Board of Haseeb Waqas Sugar Mills Limited is highly professional and experienced people. 
They bring a vast experience including the independent directors. All board members are well 
aware of their responsibili�es and fulfilling these di ligently. 

 The Board has adequate representa�on of non-execu�ve and independent directors on the 
Board and its commi�ees as required under the Code and that members of the Board and its 
respec�ve commi�ees has adequate skill experience and knowledge to manage the affairs of 
the Company;  

 The Board has ensured that the directors are provided with orienta�on courses to enable them 
to perform their du�es in an effec�ve manner. The Board has arranged Director’s Training 
program for newly appointed Director Mr. Yousaf Ilyas and the remaining directors meet the 
qualifica�on and experience criteria of the Code;

 

 
The Board has formed an Audit and Human Resource and Remunera�on Commi�ee and has 
approved their respec�ve terms of references and has assigned

 
adequate resources so that the 

commi�ees perform their responsibili�es diligently;
 

 
The Board has ensured that the mee�ngs of the Board and that of its commi�ee were held with 
the requisite quorum, all the decision making were taken through Board reso lu�on and that the 
minutes of all the mee�ngs (including commi�ees) are appropriately recorded and maintained;

 

 

The Board has ac�vely par�cipated in strategic planning process enterprise risk management 
system, policy development, and financial structure, monitoring and approval. All the significant 
issues throughout the year were presented before the Board or its commi�ees to strengthen 
and formalize the corporate decision making process.

 

 

All the significant issues throughout the year were presented

 

before the Board or its commi�ees 
to strengthen and formalize the corporate decision making process and par�cularly all the 



related party transac�ons executed by the Company were approved by the Board on the 
recommenda�on of the Audit Commi�ee;  

 
 The Board has ensured that the adequate system of internal control is in place and its regular 

assessment through self-assessment mechanism and /or internal audit ac�vi�es; 
 

 The Board has prepared and approved the director's report and has ensured that the d irector 
report is published with the quarterly and annual financial statement of the Company and the 
content of the directors report are in accordance with the requirement of applicable laws and 
regula�on;  

 
 The Board has exercised its powers in light of the power assigned to the Board in accordance 

with the relevant laws and regula�on applicable on the Company and the Board has always 
priori�zed the Compliance with all the applicable laws and regula�on in terms of their conduct 
as directors and exercising their powers and decision making. 

 
 The Board has ensured the hiring, evalua�on and compensa�on of the Chief Execu�ve and other 

key execu�ves including Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, and Head of internal Audit; 
 

 The Board has ensured that adequate informa�on is shared among its members in a �mely 
manner and the Board members are kept abreast of developments between mee�ngs; 

 
I would like to place on record with thanks and apprecia�on to my fellow directors, shareholders, 
management and staff for their con�nued support in very challenging opera�ng condi�ons. I look 
forward for more future success for the Company.   

 
 
 

Lahore          Raza Mustafa 

02 January 2019        Chairman 



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2018
 

 
The Directors of your Company take pleasure in presen�ng the Company’s 27th

 
Annual Report and Audited 

Financial Statements for the year ended 30 September 2018 together with the Auditors’ Report thereon.  
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 
The crushing season started on 26 February 2018. The opera�ng results for period under review are as under:  

  26 February 2018 To  
01 April 2008  

02 December 2016  
To  

11 February 2017  
Crushing days Days 38  72  
Average recovery %age 8.50  8.60  
Cane crushed M.T 76,819,660  177,118,515  
Sugar produced M. T 5,808  15,243  

The Mills were operated for 38 days with total crushing 76,819,660 M. Tons as against 72 days with total 
crushing of 177,118,515 M. Tons. 
FINANCIAL INDICATORS 
The financial results of your company for the year ended 30 September 2018 are summarized as follows:  

 For the year ended  
30 September 2018  

(Rupees in Thousand)  

 2018  2017  

Net Sales 
Gross Profit/ (Loss) 

Net Profit / (Loss) before tax 

250,772  

(340,215)  

(542,425)  

847,274  

(395,609)  

(578,351)  

Net Profit (Loss) a�er tax (488,901)  (572,708)  

Basic Earning (15.09)  (17.68)  

The Management could not done repair and maintenance of mills due to sealing by court, however at the 
almost end of season Supreme Court of Pakistan allowed to operate  the mills hence we incurred losses due to 
technical problem. 

The financial statements of the Company indicate that the Company incurred gross loss amoun�ng to Rs.  

542,425,961 (2017: 578,350,705) and net loss from opera�ons amoun�ng to Rs.  396,700,929  (2017: 
455,761,957) and accumulated losses Rs. 3,278,500,546 (2017:  2,865,617,599) which leads to nega�ve equity 
of Rs. 597,829,105 (2017: 134,263,282). Moreover, current liabili�es exceed current assets by Rs.  

2,795,290,914 (2017: 1,957,436,411). 

OPERATIONAL MEASURES 

In view of above issues Company has taken following mi�ga�ng steps:  

Shi�ing of mill to Alipur Jatoi, Muzaffargarh has been completed where sugar cane availability and 
sugar recovery are be�er. 

BMR has been done and we will see impact of this BMR in the financials of coming season.
 

The management foresees posi�ve cash flow from future opera�ons in expecta�on of be�er availability of 
sugar cane and sugar prices in coming seasons, since sugar dynamics are good and rising.

 

The projected financial statements prepared by the management to support its going concern assessment is 
based on following assump�ons:

 



 
  Projected  
 
 

  2019   2020   2021  

Sugar Cane crushing M.T 780,000 800,000 800,000  

Sugar Cane rate      180     185    190  

Sugar Price per kg      60      62     64  

However, it is believed that considering the mi�ga�ng factors set out in the preceding paragraphs, the going 
concern assump�on is appropriate and has, as such, prepared these  financial statements on a going concern 
basis. However, all above depends upon fate of review pe��on filed in August Supreme Court of Pakistan.  

CHANGES ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Since the last Annual General Mee�ng Mr. Yousaf Ilyas has been appointed  as Director in place of Hafiz M. 
Irfan Hussain Bu� for the remaining term of the outgoing Directors and Mian Haseeb Ilyas has been re-
appointed as Chief Execu�ve on 10 April 2018. 

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

The Supreme Court of Pakistan vide short order even dated September 13, 2018 dismissed the Company's 
appeal and prohibited the Company from conduc�ng any business in rela�on to or func�oning as a sugar mill 
a�er the period of two months i.e. 12 November 2018. Further, the appellants are directed to remove within 
the said period from Muzaffar Garh (current factory loca�on) to Nankana (pervious factory loca�on).  

However, the Company has filled review pe��on dated 6th November 2018 to review the above order and 
accept the appeal filed by the pe��oners; which is s�ll pending on part of the Supreme Court.  

Principal par�es for respondents are Govt. of the Punjab, JDW Sugar Mills Limited, Ashraf Sugar Mills Limited, 
Indus Sugar Mills Limited RYK Mills Limited etc. 
Further, the board is commi�ed to con�nue the company as going concern in case of any adverse opinion in 
future in respect of above referred ma�er. 
AUDITORS QUALIFICATIONS: 
Our auditors expressed the following qualifica�ons in the auditors’ report:  

1. “We have not received direct bank confirma�ons from banks and financial ins�tu�ons for long term 
loans amoun�ng to Rs. 1,262 million and markup amoun�ng to Rs. 361 million due to the reason 
men�oned in Note # 16.3 to the financial statements.”  

2. “Further, Note # 16.2 to the annexed financial statements elaborates the factors due to which the 
Sales Tax status has been blacklisted by the Federal Board of Revenue due to non-compliance including 
non-payment of sales tax liability of Rs. 209 million.” and  

3. “We draw a�en�on to Note # 2.4 to the financial statements, which indicates that the Company 
incurred gross loss amoun�ng to Rs: 340,215,498 (2017: 395,608,755) and net loss from opera�ons 
amoun�ng to Rs. 396,700,929 (2017: 455,761,957) and accumulated losses Rs. 3,278,500,546 (2017: 
2,865,617,599). Moreover, the current liabili�es exceed current assets by Rs. 2,127,915,443 (2017: 
1,957,436,411). Further as stated in note # 16.3 to the financial statements, the Supreme Court 
dismissed the appeal of the Company regarding loca�on of factory.  Furthermore, as stated in note # 16.3 
regarding li�ga�on of defaults in repayment of loans, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect 
of this ma�er.” 
With respect to all above three qualifica�ons, we would like to state that these are only due to the 
non-opera�onal of mill at its available capacity for the reasons men�oned in Future Outlook above.  

DIVIDEND:  
As the Company is in the phase of heavy losses, therefore, no dividend is being declared.  

 
 



The present Auditor’s M/s Qadeer & Co.
 

Chartered Accountants, are re�ring and being eligible, have offered 
themselves for re-appointment for the ensuing year. The Audit Commi�ee has recommended the re-
appointment of M/s Qadeer & Co.

 
Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Company for year ending 30 

September 2019. 
 

 CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
 

During the financial year 2018 “Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
 
Governance) Regula�ons” has been 

implemented which requires certain changes in the composi�on of the Board and its Commi�ee.  
 
 
 
 

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK:  

The following statements are a manifesta�on of its commitment towards compliance with best prac�ces 
of Code of Corporate Governance: 

 

The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of 
affairs, the results of its opera�ons, cash flows and changes in equity.

 

Proper books of accounts have been maintained. 
 

Appropriate accoun�ng policies have been consistently applied in prepara�on of financial 
statements. Accoun�ng es�mates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. 

 

Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in prepara�on of 
financial statements and departure there from, if any, has been adequately disclosed.

 

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effec�vely implemented by the 
management and monitored by internal and external Auditors as well as Audit Commi�ee. The 
Board reviews the effec�veness of established internal control through Audit Commi�ee and further 
improvement in the internal control systems, wherever required. 

 

There are no doubts upon the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. The Company has 
adequate resources to con�nue in opera�on for the foreseeable future.

 

There has been no material departure from the best prac�ces of the Corporate Governance as 
detailed in the Lis�ng Regula�ons.

 

Key opera�ng and financial data of last six years, in summarized form, is annexed.  

 

Informa�on about outstanding taxes and other government levies are given in related note(s) to the 
accounts.

 

The company strictly complies with the standard of safety rules & regula�ons. It also follows 
environmental friendly policies.

 

During the year under review, Five (05) mee�ngs of the Board of Directors were held. The 
a�endance by each Director is as follows:

 

AUDITORS:

ii.

iii.

iv.

v.

vi.

vii.

viii.

ix.

x.

xi.

v i.



 
 

 Lahore
 02 January 2019

 

______________________
 

MIAN HASEEB ILYAS
 

Chief Execu�ve
 

 

 

Sr. 
No.

 Name of Directors
 

A�endance
 

1.
 

2.
 

3.
 

4.
 

5.
 

6.
 

7.
 

8. 

Mr. Raza Mustafa
 

Mian Haseeb Ilyas
 
(CEO)

 

Mian Waqas Riaz
 

Mian Abdullah Ilyas
 

Mrs. Zainab Waqas
 

Mrs. Shahzadi Ilyas
 

Ms. Zakia Ilyas 
 

Mr. Yousaf Ilyas       

5
 

4
 

3
 

5
 

5
 

5
 

5
 

3  

Leave of absence was granted to the directors by the Board who could not a�end the Mee�ng.
 

 

The Statement of Code of Ethics and Business Prac�ces has been developed and duly signed by the 
directors and employees of the Company in acknowledgement thereof.  

The Board has cons�tuted an Audit Commi�ee in compliance with the Code of Corporate 
Governance. It comprises of the following three (3) members who are Non-Execu�ve Directors;  

Sr. No. Name  DDeessiiggnnaattiioonn   

1. 

2. 

3. 

Mr. Raza Mustafa 

Ms. Zakia Ilyas 

Mr. Yousaf Ilyas 

Chairman  

Member  

Member  
 

A statement of the pa�ern of shareholdings and addi�onal informa�on as at 30 September 2018 is 
annexed. 
No trading of shares by the Directors, Chief Execu�ve, and Chief Financial Officer, Company 
Secretary and their spouses & minor children has been carried out  during the year.  
All the major decisions rela�ng to investment or disinvestment of funds, changes in significant policies 

and overall corporate strategies, appointment, remunera�on and terms & condi�ons of appointment 
of Chief Execu�ve Officer and Execu�ve Directors are taken over by the Board of Directors.  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
The Board expresses sincere apprecia�on to sugarcane growers, valuable customers, regulatory departments 
of the Government, financial ins�tu�on and acknowledges the con�nued interest and support of esteemed 
shareholders and extremely grateful for their trust and confidence.  

 

The directors deeply appreciate devo�on, loyalty hard  work and the laudable services rendered by the 
execu�ves, all the employees and workers of the Company at its various divisions which enable us to pursue 
our corporate objec�ves with the renewed vigor.                                                                                        

 
 

On behalf of the Board
              

 
 

 Lahore
 

____________________
 

MIAN ABDULLAH ILYAS
 

Director
 

xii.

xiii.

xiv.

xv.

xvi.



SIX YEARS AT A GALANCE
 

 

 

2018

 

2017

 

2016

 

2015

 

2014

 

2013

 

  

OPERATING RESULTS
                                     

Rupees in Thousand
 Sales –

 
Net

 
250,773

 
847,275

 
879,366

 
1,380,222

 
2,173,225

 
2,571,910

 Gross profit/ (loss)
 

(340,215)
 

(395,609)
 

(565,887)
 

(606,776)
 

(408,909)
 

(236,204)
 Opera�ng profit/(loss)

 
(396,701)

 
(455,762)

 
(609,482)

 
(645,571)

 
(441,530)

 
(270,344)

 Profit/(loss) before tax
 

(542,426)
 

(578,351)
 

(773,801)
 

(789,678)
 

(629,231)
 

(473,780)
 

Profit/((loss) a�er tax
 

(488,902)
 

(572,708)
 

(685,290)
 

(779,824)
 

(625,106)
 

(460,475)
 

 
    FINANCIAL POSITION  
 

Fixed assets –  net  3,483,247  3,674,162 3,738,965 3,568,279 3,570,545 2,509,730 

Paid up capital  324,000  324,000 324,000 324,000 324,000 324,000 

Shareholder’s equity  (597,829)  (1,737,303) (1,434,210) (1,449,288) (759,736) (193,158) 

Long term liabili�es  1,286,275  1,862,979 2,183,545 2,073,687 1,119,116 882,388 

Current assets  189,585  476,748 459,795 523,454 1,134,071 1,537,721 

Current liabili�es
 

2,984,876
 

2,434,184
 

1,779,160
 

1,426,736
 

2,500,330
 

2,166,130
 

Breakup value per share (Rs.
 

(15.09)
 

(17.68)
 

(21.15)
 

(24.07)
 

(19.29)
 

(14.21)
 

 
    
STATISTICS

 
 

No. of employees
 

229
 

292
 

336
 

320
 

310
 

265
 

Sugar produced (M. Tons)

 

5,808

 

15,242.70

 

15,529.25

 

18,940

 

38,762

 

43,565

 

Crushing period (days)

 

38

 

72

 

80

 

97

 

105

 

109

 

 



C A T A G O R I E S  O F  S H A R E H O L D E R S AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2018

 Shares held %

Directors, CEO and their spouse and Minor Children
1 Mian Waqas Riaz 768,250 2.371
2 Mian Haseeb Ilyas 2,213,500 6.832

3 Mian Abdullah Ilyas 2,986,500 9.218

4 Mrs. Zainab Waqas 333,500

                    

1.029
5 Mr. Yousaf Ilyas 500

                           

0.002
6 Mr. Raza Mustafa 500

                           

0.002
7 Mrs. Shahzadi Ilyas 2,404,100

                

7.420
8 Ms. Zakia Ilyas 10,382

                      

0.032
8,717,232

                

26.905
Public Sector Companies and Corpora�on
Joint Stock Companies

1 Maple Leaf Capital Limited 1

                                

0.000
2 S.H. Bukhari Securi�es (Pvt.) Limited 400

                           

0.001
3 Sarfaraz Mahmood (Pvt.) Limited 500

                           

0.034
4 NCC - Pre Se�lement Delivery Account 500

                           

0.002
5 Y.S. Securi�es (Pvt.) Limited 1,000

                        

0.003
6 Telesys Tech (Pvt) Limited 3,121

                        

0.010
7 Mileage (Pvt.) Limited 7,500

                        

0.023
8 Apex Financial Services (Pvt.) Limited 15,000

                      

0.046
9 Muhammad Bashir Kasmani Securi�es (Pvt.) Limited 17,000

                      

0.052
10 High Land Securi�es (Pvt.) Limited 22,500

                      

0.069
11 MRA Securi�es Limited - MF 44,500

                      

0.137
12 Zafar Securi�es (Pvt) Limited 44,500

                      

0.137
13 Kohinoor Power Company Limited 76,500

                      

0.236
14 Mul�line Securi�es (Pvt.) Limited 315,000

                    
0.972

15 Ali Hussain Rajabali Limited 606,000
                    

1.870
16 Abdullah Sugar Mills Limited 2,900,500

                
8.952

4,054,522
                

12.546
Banks, Developments Finance Ins�u�ons,

Non Banking Finance Ins�u�ons
1 Bank Alfalah Limited Lahore Stock Exchange Branch 800                           0.002
2 The Bank of Punjab 6,700                        0.021
3 Trust Leasing Corpora�on 9,700 0.030

17,200
                      

2.926
Insurance Companies

1 Shaheen Insurance Company Limited 119

                           

0.000
2 State Life Insurance Corp. 200

                           

0.001
3 State Life Insurance Corp. of Pakistan 617,600

                    

1.906
617,919

                    

1.907
Modaraba Companies

1 Trust Modaraba 100

                           

0.000
2 Trust Modaraba 5,600

                        

0.017
3 First Punjab Modaraba 1,400

                        

0.004
4 First Punjab Modaraba 600

                           

0.002
7,700

                        

0.024
Others

1 James Capel & Co 22,800

                      

0.070
2 Morgan Stanly Trust & Company 14,900

                      

0.046
3 Deutsche Bank Securi�es Corp. 600

                           

0.002
4 Hong Kong Bank Interna�onal 200

                           

0.001
38,500

                      

0.119

Foreign / Non Resident Investors 5,000

                        

0.015
5,000

                        

0.015

Shares held by General Public 18,941,927

              

58.463
18,941,927

              

58.463

Sharteholders holding 05% or more vo�ng intrerst in the Company

1 Mian Muhammad Ilyas Miraj 4,566,500 14.09
2 Abdullah Sugar Mills Limited 2,900,500 8.95
3 Mrs. Shahzadi Ilyas 2,404,100 7.42
4 Mian Abdullah Ilyas 2,986,500 8.79
5 Mian Haseeb Ilyas 2,213,500 6.83

15,071,100 46.09
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 0.02

 0.63

 0.79

 3.44

 2.89

 1.62

 1.43

 1.43

 0.87

 0.52

 0.61

 0.54

 1.23

 0.49

 0.55

 0.39

 0.22

 0.46

 1.21

 0.25

 1.09

 2.15

 0.33

 0.39

 0.40

 0.44

 0.93

 0.52

 0.57

 0.60

 0.61

 0.62

 0.79

 0.85

 0.87

 8,064

 205,691

 256,071

 1,116,058

 935,100

 524,782

 463,896

 461,800

 283,000

 168,338

 198,500

 174,500

 398,000

 158,000

 178,000

 126,000

 70,000

 149,500

 391,500

 82,286

 352,500

 697,000

 107,500

 125,000

 128,000

 142,000

 300,000

 167,000

 186,000

 194,500

 197,000

 201,500

 255,714

 274,000

 283,000

 100

 500

 1000

 5000

 10000

 15000

 20000

 25000

 30000

 35000

 40000

 45000

 50000

 55000

 60000

 65000

 70000

 75000

 80000

 85000

 90000

 100000

 110000

 125000

 130000

 145000

 150000

 170000

 190000

 195000

 200000

 205000

 260000

 275000

 285000

1  -

101  -

501  -

1001  -

5001  -

10001  -

15001  -

20001  -

25001  -

30001  -

35001  -

40001  -

45001  -

50001  -

55001  -

60001  -

65001  -

70001  -

75001  -

80001  -

85001  -

95001  -

105001  -

120001  -

125001  -

140001  -

145001  -

165001  -

185001  -

190001  -

195001  -

200001  -

255001  -

270001  -

280001  -

 182

 438

 261

 389

 111

 39

 25

 20

 10

 5

 5

 4

 8

 3

 3

 2

 1

 2

 5

 1

 4

 7

 1

 1

 1

 1

 2

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

Total Number of 
Share Held

Pattern of Shareholding for Haseeb Waqas Sugar Mills Limited

As on:- 30-Sep-2018

Percentage of 
Total Capital

Number of 
ShareHolders

Shareholdings 
From

To
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Pattern of Shareholding for Haseeb Waqas Sugar Mills Limited

As on:- 30-Sep-2018

Percentage of 
Total Capital

Number of 
ShareHolders

ToShareholdings 
From

310001  -

330001  -

495001  -

605001  -

615001  -

765001  -

915001  -

1020001  -

1165001  -

1260001  -

2210001  -

2400001  -

2840001  -

2900001  -

4565001  -

 0.97

 1.03

 1.54

 1.87

 1.91

 2.37

 2.83

 3.16

 3.60

 3.90

 6.83

 7.42

 8.78

 8.95

 14.09

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

 1

 315000

 335000

 500000

 610000

 620000

 770000

 920000

 1025000

 1170000

 1265000

 2215000

 2405000

 2845000

 2905000

 4570000

Total Number of 
Share Held

 315,000

 333,500

 500,000

 606,000

 617,600

 768,250

 917,500

 1,022,750

 1,168,000

 1,262,500

 2,213,500

 2,404,100

 2,844,500

 2,900,500

 4,566,500

 32,400,000 1,554  100.00

Percentage
of Total
Capital

Shares
Held

No. of
Shareholder

CategoryCode

Categories of Share Holders
As on: September 30, 2018

Ser 
#

2 Financial Institutions  3  17,200  0.0531 1

4 Joint Stock Companies  16  4,054,522  12.5140 2

5 Insurance Companies  3  617,919  1.9072 3

6 Modarabas  4  7,700  0.0238 4

22 General Public (Local)  1,521  27,659,159  85.3678 5

23 General Public (Foreign)  3  5,000  0.0154 6

24 Others  4  38,500  0.1188 7

 1,554  32,400,000  100.0000TOTAL:
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Categories Detail

As on: September 30, 2018.

Sr. # Folio
Number

Name Shares 
Held

Per % Total
Capital

Catagory

Haseeb Waqas Sugar Mills Limited

Running Total General Public (Local)  27,659,159  85.3678

General Public (Foreign)

Running Total General Public (Foreign)  5,000  0.0154

Others

5261 HONG KONG BANK INTERNATIONAL  200  0.0006 1
5246 DEUTSCHE BANK SECURITIES CORP.  600  0.0019 2
5279 MORGAN STANLY TRUST COMPANY  14,900  0.0460 3
5176 JAMES CAPEL & CO.  22,800  0.0704 4

Running Total Others  38,500  0.1188

Grand Total:  32,400,000  100.0000

Categories Detail

As on: September 30, 2018.

Sr. # Folio
Number

Name Shares 
Held

Per % Total
Capital

Catagory

Haseeb Waqas Sugar Mills Limited

Financial Institutions

CDC-350 BANK ALFALAH LIMITED - LAHORE STOCK 
EXCHANGE BRANC

 800  0.0025 1

802 THE BANK OF PUNJAB  6,700  0.0207 2
805 TRUST LEASING CORPORATION  9,700  0.0299 3

Running Total Financial Institutions  17,200  0.0531

Joint Stock Companies

CDC-420 MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED  1  0.0000 1
CDC-349 S.H. BUKHARI SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED  400  0.0012 2
CDC-401 SARFRAZ MAHMOOD (PRIVATE) LTD  500  0.0015 3
CDC-698 NCC - PRE SETTLEMENT DELIVERY ACCOUNT  500  0.0015 4
CDC-229 Y.S. SECURITIES & SERVICES (PVT) LTD.  1,000  0.0031 5
CDC-169 TELE SYS TECH (PRIVATE) LIMITED  3,121  0.0096 6
CDC-407 MILEAGE (PVT) LTD  7,500  0.0231 7
CDC-215 APEX FINANCIAL SERVICES (PVT.) LIMITED  15,000  0.0463 8
CDC-904 MUHAMMAD BASHIR KASMANI (PRIVATE) LIMITED  17,000  0.0525 9
CDC-1126 HIGH LAND SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED  22,500  0.0694 10
CDC-1162 MRA SECURITIES LIMITED - MF  44,500  0.1373 11
CDC-241 ZAFAR SECURITIES (PVT) LTD.  44,500  0.1373 12
CDC-1096 KOHINOOR POWER COMPANY LIMITED  76,500  0.2361 13
CDC-1134 MULTILINE SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED - MF  315,000  0.9722 14
CDC-799 ALI HUSAIN RAJABALI LIMITED  606,000  1.8704 15
CDC-390 ABDULLAH SUGAR MILLS LIMITED  2,900,500  8.9522 16

Running Total Joint Stock Companies  4,054,522  12.5140

Insurance Companies

CDC-145 SHAHEEN INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED  119  0.0004 1
5920 STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORP.  200  0.0006 2
CDC-217 STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORP. OF PAKISTAN  617,600  1.9062 3

Running Total Insurance Companies  617,919  1.9072

Modarabas

806 TRUST MODARABA  100  0.0003 1
803 FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA  600  0.0019 2
812 FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA  1,400  0.0043 3
804 TRUST MODARABA  5,600  0.0173 4

Running Total Modarabas  7,700  0.0238

General Public (Local)



16

 
 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
 

(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017
 

 

HASEEB WAQAS SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2018
 

  

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regula�ons in the following manner:
 

  

1
 

The total number of
 

Directors are eight as per the following:
 

a.
 
Male

 
05

 

b.
 
Female

 
03

 

   

2.  The composi�on of Board is as follows:  

  

a.  Independent Director  Mr. Raza Mustafa 

b.  Execu�ve Director   Mian  Haseeb Ilyas  

c.  Non-Execu�ve Directors  Mian Abdullah Ilyas 

Mian Waqas Riaz  

Mr. Yousaf Ilyas 

Mrs. Shahzadi Ilyas 

Mrs. Zainab Waqas 
Ms. Zakia Ilyas 

3.  The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five 
listed companies, including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding 
companies where applicable).  

  
4.  The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have 

been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its suppor�ng policies and 
procedures.  

  
5.  The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 

policies of the company. A complete record of par�culars of significant policies along with the 
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained. 

  
6.

 
All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant ma�ers  have 
been taken by board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and 
these Regula�ons.

 

  
7.

 
The mee�ngs of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a 
Director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements 
of Act and the Regula�ons with respect to frequency, recording and circula�ng minutes of 
mee�ng of Board.

 

  8.
 
The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remunera�on of 
Directors in accordance with the Act and these Regula�ons.
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9.  The Board has duly complied with the Directors’ Training Program requirement and 

the criteria as prescribed in the Regula�ons. The Board has arranged Director’s Training 
program for newly appointed Director Mr. Yousaf Ilyas. 

  
10.  The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 

including  their remunera�on and terms and condi�ons of employment and complied with 
relevant requirements of the Regula�ons except for the minimum experience requirement of 
the CFO, Regula�on 23 (a) requires the CFO to have at least three years of managerial 
experience in fields of audit or accoun�ng or is managing financial or corporate func�ons of a 
company and is a member of Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan or Ins�tute of Cost 
and Management Accountants of Pakistan. The Board is in process of complying with the 
requirements of the Regula�ons.  

  
11.  CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board. 

  

12.  The Board has formed commi�ee comprising of members given below: 
  

a.  Audit Commi�ee  Mr. Raza Mustafa (Chairman) 
Ms. Zakia Ilyas (Member) 
Mr. Yousaf Ilyas (Member) 

b.  HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee  Mian Waqas Riaz (Chairman) 
Mrs. Zainab Waqas (Member) 
Ms. Zakia Ilyas (Member) 

 Regula�on 28 (1){c} requires the Board to sa�fy itself such that at least one member of the 
audit commi�ee qualifies as financially literate. The Board will comply with aforemen�oned 
regula�on upon-re-cons�tu�on of the Board a�er expiry of the current term. 

  

13.  The terms of reference of the aforesaid commi�ees have been formed, documented and 
advised to the commi�ee for compliance.  

  

14.  The frequency of mee�ngs (quarterly/half yearly/yearly) of the commi�ee were as following: 
  

a.  Audit Commi�ee  04 

b.  HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee  01 

c.  Nomina�on Commi�ee  Not Applicable 

d.  Risk Management Commi�ee  Not Applicable 
   

15.  The Board has set up an effec�ve internal audit func�on that is considered suitably qualified 
and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the 
company  

 

16.  The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a sa�sfactory 
ra�ng under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit 
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and 
minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in 



 
 

compliance with Interna�onal Federa�on of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as 
adopted by the ICAP.

 

  17.
 
The Statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to 
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regula�ons or any other 
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC 
guidelines in this regard.  

  
18.  We confirm that all other requirements of the Regula�ons have been complied with. 

 
                                                                            

 

On behalf of the Board  
 

 

______________________
      

_________________
 

Mian Haseeb Ilyas                                                                                                                         Mian Abdullah Ilyas
 

Chief Execu�ve
       

Director
 

 
                          

Lahore

         

Lahore

 

January 02, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

 
 

To the members of Haseeb Waqas Sugar Mills

 

Limited

 
 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

 
 

Qualified Opinion

 
 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Haseeb Waqas Sugar Mills

 

Limited

 

(the Company), which 
comprise the Statement of financial posi�on as at September

 

30, 2018, and the statement of profit or loss,

 

the 
statement of

 

comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to

 

the financial statements, including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies 
and other explanatory informa�on, and we state that we have obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

   

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us,
 
except for the 

effects of the ma�er described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion,
 
the statement of financial posi�on, 

statement of profit or loss and statement of
 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and 

the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accoun�ng and 
repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respec�vely give a true and fair view of the state of the 
Company's affairs as at September

 
30, 2018

 
and of the

 
loss and other comprehensive loss, the changes in 

equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.  

Basis for Qualified Opinion   

We have not received direct bank confirma�ons from banks and financial ins�tu�ons for long term loans 
amoun�ng to Rs. 1,262 million and markup amoun�ng to Rs. 361 million due to the reason men�oned in Note 
# 16.3 to the financial statements.  

 

Further, Note # 16.2 to the annexed financial statements elaborates the factors due to which the Sales Tax 
status has been blacklisted by the Federal Board of Revenue due to non-compliance including non-payment of 
sales tax liability of Rs. 209 million. 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibili�es under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibili�es for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Interna�onal Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

 
 Material uncertainty rela�ng to Going Concern

 We draw a�en�on to Note # 2.4 to the financial statements, which indicates that the Company incurred gross 
loss amoun�ng to Rs: 340,215,498 (2017: 395,608,755) and net loss from opera�ons amoun�ng to Rs. 
396,700,929 (2017: 455,761,957) and accumulated losses Rs. 3,278,500,546 (2017: 2,865,617,599). Moreover, 
the current liabili�es exceed current assets by Rs. 2,127,915,443 (2017: 1,957,436,411). Further as stated in 
note # 16.3 to the financial statements, the Supreme Court dismissed the appeal of the Company regarding 
loca�on of factory.

 Furthermore, as stated in note # 16.3 regarding li�ga�on of defaults in repayment of loans, indicate that a 
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going 
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this ma�er.

 
 

Key Audit Ma�ers

 
 

Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current year. These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our audit of 

the financial statements as a whole,  and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these ma�ers.  
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Following are the Key Audit Ma�ers;

Sr. 
No.

Key Audit Ma�ers How the ma�ers were addressed in our audit

(i) New requirements under the Companies Act, 2017

As referred to in note 2.3.1

 

to the annexed financial 
statements, the third and fourth schedules to the 
Companies Act, 2017 became applicable for the first 
�me for the prepara�on of the Company’s annual 
financial statements for the year ended September

 

30, 2018.

The companies Act, 2017 (including third and fourth 
schedules) forms an integral part of the statutory 
financial repor�ng framework as applicable to the 
Company and amongst others, prescribes the nature 
and content of disclosures in rela�on to various 
elements of the financial statements.

 

As part of this transi�on to the requirements of the 
said third and fourth schedules, the management 
performed a gap analysis to iden�fy differences 
between the previous repor�ng framework and the 
current repor�ng framework and as a result assessed 
the in the Company’s financial statements.

 

We consider it as a key audit ma�er in view of the 
extensive impacts in the financial statements due to 
the Companies Act, 2017. 

 
 

Our audit procedures included the followings:

 
 

�

 

Considering the management’s process to iden�fy the necessary amendments 
required in the Company’s financial statements.

 
 

�

 

Evalua�ng the results of management’s analysis and key decisions in respect of the 
transac�on, using our knowledge of the relevant requirements of the third and 
fourth schedules to the Companies Act, 2017 and our

 

understanding of the 
Company’s opera�ons and business.

 
 

�

 

Assessing the adequacy and appropriateness of the addi�onal disclosures and 
changes to the previous disclosures made in the annexed financial statements 
based on the new requirements.

 
 

�

 

Comple�on of disclosure checklists

 

issued by regulatory / professional bodies. 

(ii) Property, Plant and Equipment
 

The Property, Plant and Equipment balance 
comprises 94.8 % (2017: 88.3%) of total assets. This 
amounts to Rs. 3.483

 

billion (2017: Rs. 3.67

 

billion) 
as shown in note 17 to the financial statements. 

 Extensive physical and third party verifica�ons and 
judgement are

 

exercised in determining the 
existence of all recorded assets, valua�on basis, 
calcula�on of book value of revalued assets, their 
useful lives and residual values and when assessing 
whether there are any indicators of impairment 
present and when performing impairment 
assessments where indicators have been iden�fied. 

 

Based on the value of the balance as well as the 
judgements and verifica�ons

 

involved in 
determining existence, valua�on, useful lives and 
residual values this has been iden�fied as a key 
audit ma�er.

 
 The following was performed on the existence, valua�on and assessment of useful lives 

and residual values:

 �

 

Make a selec�on of fixed assets held by client at year and physically inspect them.

�

 

Obtain movement schedules and trace balances with register, general ledger etc.

�

 

Inquiries about valua�on and its basis from Company’s engineers and experts to 
ensure book value does not materially different from the market value.

�

 

Obtained the useful lives and residual values assessment and confirmed that this 
was reviewed and considered in the year under review;

 

�

 

Followed up on changes

 

required

 

to useful lives and corroborated by inspec�on of 
assets and discussion with opera�onal personnel to ensure whether the 
amendment was required; and

 

�

 

Confirmed by inspec�on of the fixed asset register and discussion with opera�onal 
management that there were no material assets s�ll in use with a nil value, and 
where residual values had been increased

 

/ (decreased)

 

corroborated to market 
values where possible.

 

�

 

Reduced capacity, forecasts, market demand for products, and the condi�on of 
the plants was reviewed.

 

�

 

In corrobora�ng the view, produc�on analyses at the various mills was performed 
and compared to standard capacity to assist in iden�fying possible impairment 
indicators;

� Buildings were inspected to iden�fy any damages or non-opera�ng assets; and

� Discussions were held with the experts and others to iden�fy any other poten�al 
impairments.
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Informa�on Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  

Management is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on comprises the informa�on included in the annual report, but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on  and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in doing s o, consider whether the 
other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we concluded that there is a material misstatement of this other informa�on, we are  required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibili�es of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements  

Management is responsible for the prepara�on and fair presenta�on of the financial statements in accordance with the accoun�ng and repor�ng 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the prepara�on of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether d ue to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the  Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.  

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial repor�ng process.  

Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high lev el of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reas onably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain profess ional skep�cism 
throughout the audit. We also:  

� Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may invol ve collusion, 
forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.  

� Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effec�veness of the Company’s internal control.  

� Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and related disclosures m ade by 
management.  

� Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s abilit y to con�nue as 
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to 
con�nue as a going concern.  

� Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.  
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We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming of the audit and sign ificant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we iden�fy during our audit.  

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.  

From the ma�ers communicated with the board of directors, we determine those ma�ers that were of most significance in the a udit of the 
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor’ s report unless law or 
regula�on precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communica�on. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:  

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);  

b) Except for the ma�er disclosed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion, the statement  of financial posi�on, the statement of profit or loss and the 
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and 

d) no Zakat was deduc�ble at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).  

The engagement partner on the audit resul�ng in this independent auditor’s report is Nawaz Khan, FCA.  

Lahore, 
Dated: January 02, 2019 

Qadeer and Company,
Chartered Accountants
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mian Haseeb Ilyas Mian Abdullah Ilyas Syed Mubashir Hussain Bukhari

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

September 30, September 30, Septembr 30,

2018 2017 2016

Note Rupees Rupees Rupees

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES Restated Restated

Share Capital and Reserves

Authorized capital
35,000,000 (2017: 35,000,000) ordinary

shares of Rs. 10 each 350,000,000           350,000,000           350,000,000           

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 5 324,000,000           324,000,000           324,000,000           

Loan from directors and sponsors 6 829,647,072           804,314,867           615,211,264           

Capital Reserves
Surplus on Revalua�on of Property, 

Plant and Equipment 7 1,527,024,369
       

1,603,039,450
       

1,683,536,288
       

Revenue Reserves

Accumulated (loss) / profit (3,278,500,546)
      

(2,865,617,599)
      

(2,373,421,473)
      

(597,829,105)
         

(134,263,282)
         

249,326,079
           

Non Current Liabili�es

Long term financing 8 549,373,562

           

1,050,739,048

       

1,370,430,334

       

Liabili�es against assets subject to finance lease 9 -

                           

-

                           

-

                           

Deferred liabili�es 10 17,343,374

             

39,158,944

             

34,397,335

             

Deferred taxa�on 11 719,558,548

           

773,081,208

           

778,717,623

           

1,286,275,484

       

1,862,979,200

       

2,183,545,292

       

Current Liabili�es

Trade and other payables 12 814,472,632

           

961,586,683

           

662,763,791

           

Markup on loans and other payables 13 396,565,989

           

283,670,346

           

261,949,861

           

Short term borrowings 14 669,579,535

           

574,535,180

           

312,262,432

           

Unclaimed dividend 1,443,972

               

1,443,972

               

1,443,972

               

Current por�on of non current liabili�es 15 1,102,814,080

       

612,948,594

           

540,740,258

           

2,984,876,208

       

2,434,184,775

       

1,779,160,314

       

Con�ngencies and Commitments 16 -

                           

-

                           

3,673,322,587 4,162,900,693 4,212,031,686
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ASSETS

Non Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 17 3,483,247,293       3,674,162,329       3,738,964,682       

Long term deposits 18 490,000                   11,990,000             13,271,620             

3,483,737,293       3,686,152,329       3,752,236,302       

Current Assets

Stores, spares and loose tools 19 55,684,867

             

44,319,828

             

23,704,046

             

Stock in trade 20 -

                           

-

                           

5,506,175

               

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 21 131,797,120

           

429,770,667

           

422,667,745

           

Cash and bank balances 22 2,103,307

               

2,657,869

               

7,917,418

               

189,585,294

           

476,748,364

           

459,795,384

           

3,673,322,587 4,162,900,693 4,212,031,686

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mian Haseeb Ilyas Mian Abdullah Ilyas Syed Mubashir Hussain Bukhari
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note

Sales - Net 23 250,772,728         847,274,895         
Cost of goods sold 24 (590,988,226)       (1,242,883,650)    

(340,215,498)       (395,608,755)       

Opera�ng expenses:
- Administra�ve and general expenses 25 (56,940,434)         (60,155,938)         
- Other opera�ng charges 26 (625,000)               (625,000)               
- Other income 27 1,080,002             627,736                

Loss from opera�on (396,700,930)       (455,761,957)       

Finance cost 28 (145,725,031)       (122,588,748)       

Loss before taxa�on (542,425,961)       (578,350,705)       

Taxa�on 29 53,524,189           5,642,812             

Loss a�er taxa�on (488,901,772)       (572,707,893)       

Earning per share - basic 30 (15.09)                   (17.68)                   

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Rupees

Gross (loss)

Annual Report 2018 25

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mian Haseeb Ilyas Mian Abdullah Ilyas Syed Mubashir Hussain Bukhari
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note

(Loss) after taxation (488,901,772)         (572,707,893)       

Other comprehensive income

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation 5,273                     21,327                 

Impact of deferred tax (1,529)                    (6,398)                  

3,744                     14,929                 

Total comprehensive income for the year (488,898,028)         (572,692,964)       

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Rupees

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mian Haseeb Ilyas Mian Abdullah Ilyas Syed Mubashir Hussain Bukhari
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 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

NOTE 2018 2017

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Loss) before taxation (542,425,961)

     

(578,350,705)

     

Adjustments for:
- Depreciation 191,045,328

       

203,512,782

       

- Provision for employees retirement benefits 1,459,131

           

5,901,936

           

- Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment (189,242)

            

(589,737)

            

- Finance cost 145,725,031

       

122,588,748

       

338,040,248

       

331,413,729

       

Operating profit before working capital changes (204,385,713)
     

(246,936,976)
     

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
- Stores, spares and loose tools (11,365,039)

       
(20,615,782)

       

- Stock in trade -                      5,506,175           
- Loans and advances -                      -                      
- Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 299,497,636       2,097,892           

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
- Trade and other payables (170,096,522)

     
298,822,889

       
118,036,075

       
285,811,174

       
Cash generated from operations (86,349,638)

       

38,874,198

         Income tax paid / deducted (1,524,089)

         

(9,200,813)

         
Gratuity paid (286,957)

            

(1,119,000)

         
Finance cost paid (32,829,388)

       

(100,868,263)

     
Net cash generated from/used in operating activities (120,990,072)

     

(72,313,878)

       
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Property, plant and equipment purchased (161,050)

            

(138,707,127)

     

Proceed from sale of vehicle 220,000

              

586,435

              

Long term deposits 11,500,000

         

1,281,620

           

Net cash used in investing activities 11,558,950

         

(136,839,072)

     

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds / (Repayment) from long term loans - Net (11,500,000)

       

(223,125,000)

     

Proceeds / (Repayment) from directors'/ sponsor loan - Net 25,332,205

         

164,745,653

       

Proceeds / (Repayment) of related parties 95,044,355

         

262,272,748

       

Net cash used in financing activities 108,876,560

       

203,893,401

       

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (554,562)

            

(5,259,549)

         

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,657,869

           

7,917,418

           

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22 2,103,307

           

2,657,869

           

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Rupees

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mian Haseeb Ilyas Mian Abdullah Ilyas Syed Mubashir Hussain Bukhari
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Balance as at September 30, 2016 as previously reported 324,000,000          615,211,264          -                          (2,373,421,473)       (1,434,210,209)

Impact of restatement- Note 4 -                         -                         1,683,536,288        -                         1,683,536,288

Balance as at September 30, 2016- restated 324,000,000          615,211,264          1,683,536,288        (2,373,421,473)       249,326,079

Net (loss) for the year ended September 30, 2017 -                         -                         -                          (572,707,893)         (572,707,893)

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year ended September 30, 2017 -                         -                         -                          14,929                   14,929

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ended September 30, 2017 -                         -                         -                          (572,692,964)         (572,692,964)

Transaction with owners:

Increase in directors' loan during the year -                         189,103,603          -                          -                         189,103,603

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets transferred to

retained earnings in respect of incremental depreciation - net of tax -                         -                         (80,496,838)            80,496,838            -

Balance as at September 30, 2017- restated 324,000,000          804,314,867          1,603,039,450        (2,865,617,599)       (134,263,282)

Net (loss) for the year ended September 30, 2018 -                         -                         -                          (488,901,772)         (488,901,772)

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year ended September 30, 2018 -                         -                         -                          3,744                     3,744

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ended September 30, 2018 -                         -                         -                          (488,898,028)         (488,898,028)

Transaction with owners:

Increase in sponsors and directors' loan during the year -                         25,332,205            -                         25,332,205

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets transferred to

retained earnings in respect of incremental depreciation - net of tax -                         -                         (76,015,081)            76,015,081            -

Balance as at September 30, 2018 324,000,000          829,647,072          1,527,024,369        (3,278,500,546)       (597,829,105)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

R u p e e s

Issued,
Loan from 

directors

Accumulated 

(loss) / profit
Total

Surplus on 

Revaluation of 

Propery, Plant & 

equipment

subscribed and
paid up capital

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mian Haseeb Ilyas Mian Abdullah Ilyas Syed Mubashir Hussain Bukhari



 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

1 Corporate and General Opera�on

1.1 Legal Status and opera�ons

1.2 Summary of significant events and transac�ons in the current repor�ng period:

-

-

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

2.2 Accoun�ng conven�on

2.3

2.3.1

2.3.2

2.3.3

IAS 19 1-Jan-19

IAS 28 1-Jan-19

The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or se�lement of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses

updated actuarial assump�ons to determine its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the effect of the

asset ceiling is disregarded when calcula�ng the gain or loss on any se�lement of the plan and is dealt with separately in

comprehensive income.

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost conven�on except for certain financial instruments at fair value and

certain items of property, plant and equipment that are stated at revalued amounts. In these financial statements, except for the

amounts reflected in the cash flow statement, all transac�ons have been accounted for on accrual basis.

New standards, amendments to the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan

The third and fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 became applicable to the Company for the first �me for the prepara�on of

these financial statements. The Companies Act, 2017 (including its third and fourth schedule) forms an integral part of the statutory

financial repor�ng framework applicable to the Company and amongst others, prescribes the nature and content of disclosures in

rela�on to various elements of the financial statements. Addi�onal disclosures include but are not limited to,           

(a) par�culars of immoveable assets of the Company, (b) disclosure of last three years comparison of tax provision and assessment,

(c) change in threshold for iden�fica�on of execu�ve, (d) presenta�on of unclaimed dividend on face of balance sheet etc.

However, there was no change in the reported amounts of profit and other comprehensive income and the amounts presented in the

Statement of Financial Posi�on due to reclassifica�on.

The other amendments to the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan that were mandatory for the Company's

financial year ended September 30, 2018 are; (a) Amendments to IAS 7: Disclosure Ini�a�ve, (b) Amendments to IAS 12: Recogni�on

of Deferred tax assets for Unrealized losses, and (c) Amendments to IFRS 12: Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 201-2016 Cycle.

These are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's financial repor�ng.

New standards, amendments to the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan that are effec�ve for the 

Company's accoun�ng period beginning on or a�er October 01, 2018

Effec�ve date (annual repor�ng 

periods beginning on or a�er)

Employee benefits (Amendments) 

Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments) 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan.

The accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (IFRS

Standards) issued by the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards Board (IASB) as no�fied under the Companies Act 2017 and provisions of

and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act 2017. Where provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act 2017 differ

from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act 2017 have been followed.

The Company's financial posi�on and performance was par�cularly affected by the following events and transac�ons during the

repor�ng period:

Haseeb Waqas Sugar Mills Limited ("the Company") was incorporated on 13 January 1992 as a Public Limited Company under the

repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act 2017). The Company's registered office is situated at 6-F Model Town,

Lahore. The mill is situated at Tehsil Ja�oi Dis�. Muzafargarh. The Company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal ac�vity

of the Company is manufacture and sale of refined sugar and its by-products.

The Supreme Court of Pakistan vide short order even dated September 13, 2018 dismissed the Company's appeal and prohibited the

Company from conduc�ng any business in rela�on to or func�oning as a sugar mill a�er the periond of two months i.e. 12 November

2018. Further, the appellants are directed to remove within the said period from Muzaffar Garh (current factory loca�on) to Nankana

(pervious factory loca�on). 

However, the Company has filled review pe��on dated 6th November 2018 to review the above order and accept the appeal filed by

the pe��oners; which is s�ll pending on part of the Supreme Court.

Principal par�es for respondents are Govt. of the Punjab, JDW Sugar Mills Limited, Ashraf Sugar Mills Limited, Indus Sugar Mills

Limited RYK Mills Limited etc.

Due to the above men�oned reason, the Company could not run on its installed capacity as men�oned in note # 31.
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IAS 40 1-Jan-18

IFRS 2 1-Jan-18

IFRS 4 1-Jan-18

IFRS 9 1-Jul-18

IFRS 15 1-Jul-18

IFRS 16 1-Jan-19

IFRIC 22 1-Jan-18

IFRIC 23 1-Jan-19

IFRS 1 

IFRS 14 

IFRS 17 

The amendment will affect companies that finance such en��es with preference shares or with loans for which

repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and

accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in

which both standards are to be applied.

The amendment clarifies that an en�ty shall transfer the property to, or from, investment property when, and only

when there is a change in use. a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the defini�on of

investment property there is evidence of the change in use. In isola�on, a change in management’s inten�ons for the

use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.

The amendments cover three accoun�ng areas (a) measurement of cash-se�led share-based payments; (b)

classifica�on of share-based payments se�led net of tax withholdings; and (c) accoun�ng for a modifica�on of a share-

based payment from cash-se�led to equity se�led. The new requirements could affect the classifica�on and/or

measurement of these arrangements and poten�ally the �ming and amount of expense recognized for new and

outstanding awards.

IFRS 9 replaces the exis�ng guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recogni�on and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes

revised guidance on the classifica�on and measurement of financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model for

calcula�ng impairment on financial assets and new general hedge accoun�ng requirements. It also carries forward the

guidance on recogni�on and derecogni�on of financial instruments from IAS 39. The company is currently in the process

of analyzing the poten�al impact of changes required in classifica�on and measurement of financial instruments and the

impact of expected loss model on adop�on  of the standard.

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized.

It replaces exis�ng revenue recogni�on guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘construc�on contracts’ and IFRIC

13 ‘CUSTOMER Loyalty Programmes’. The company is currently in the process of analyzing the poten�al impact of

changes required in revenue recogni�on policies on adop�on  of the standard.

IFRS 16 replaces exis�ng leasing guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, SIC-15 ‘Opera�ng Leases-Incen�ves’ and SIC-27 ‘

Evalua�ng The Substance of Transac�ons Involving Legal Form of A Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet

lease accoun�ng model for lessees. A lessees recognizes a right of use asset represen�ng its right to use the underlying

asset and a lease liability represen�ng its obliga�on to make lease payments. There are recogni�on exemp�ons for

short-term leases and leases of low value-items. Lessor accoun�ng remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors

con�nue to classify lease as finance or opera�ng leases.

The amendment clarifies which date should be used for transla�on when a foreign currency transac�on involves

payment or receipt in advance of the item it relates to. The related item is tanslated using the exchange rate on the date

of advance foreign currency is received or paid and prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the

transac�on for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on ini�al recogni�on of the related asset, expense

or income(or part of it) would remain the date on which receipt of payment from advance considera�on was

recognized. If there are mul�ple payments or receipt in advance the en�ty shall determine a date of the transac�on for

each payment or receipt of advance considera�on. The company is currently in the process of analyzing the poten�al

impact of changes required on adop�on of the standard.

The amendment clarifies the accoun�ng for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS

12. The interpreta�on requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and

deffered tax. The applica�on of interpreta�on is not likely to have an impact on company’s financial statements. The

company is currently in the process of analyzing the poten�al impact of changes required on adop�on of the standard.

Further, the following new standards and interpreta�ons have been issued by the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards Board (IASB),

which are yet to be no�fied by the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose of their applicability in

Pakistan:

Financial Instruments 

Insurance Contracts

Investment property (Amendments) 

Share-based Payment (Amendments) 

Insurance contracts (Amendments) 

Leases 

Uncertainty Over Income Tax 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

Foreign Currency Transac�ons and Advance Considera�on 

The management an�cipates that the adop�on of the above standards, amendments and interpreta�ons in future periods, will have

no material impact on the financial statements other than the impact on presenta�on/disclosures. The management is in the process

of assessing the impact of changes laid down by the IFRS 9, 15 and 16 on its financial statements.

First-�me Adop�on of Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards

Regulatory Deferral Accounts
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IFRIC 4 

IFRIC 12 

2.4 Going concern assump�on

Opera�onal measures

BMR has been done and we will see impact of this BMR in the financials of coming season.

                                                                                                       

2019 2020 2021

Sugar Cane Crushing M.T 780,000 800,000 800,000

Sugar cane rate 180 185 190

Sugar price per Kg 60 62 64

2.5

2.5.1

2.5.2

2.5.3

2.5.4 Taxa�on

The Company takes into account income tax law and decisions taken by appellate authori�es. Instances where the Company's view

differs from the view taken by tax department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view of items of

material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as con�ngent liabili�es.

The projected financial statements prepared by the management to support its going concern assessment is based on following

assump�ons.

Service concession arrangements

Significant management es�mates in these financial statements relate to the useful life of property, plant and equipment, provisions

for doub�ul receivables, slow moving inventory and taxa�on. However, the management believes that the change in outcome of

es�mates would not have a material effect on the amounts disclosed in the financial statements.

Judgment made by management in the applica�on of accoun�ng and repor�ng standards that have significant effect on the financial

statements and es�mates with a risk of material adjustment in subsequent year are as follows;

The management foresees posi�ve cash flow from future opera�ons in expecta�on of be�er availability of sugar cane and sugar

prices in coming season, since sugar dynamics are good and rising.

However, it is believed that considering the mi�ga�ng factors set out in the preceding paragraphs, the going concern assump�on is

appropriate and has, as such, prepared these financial statements on a going concern basis.

However, all above depends upon fate of review appeal dated: 6th November 2018 filed with Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan

against the short orders of Supreme Court for dismantling of mill from Muzaffar Garh. Further, the management is fully commi�ed to

make the project going concern.

Judgment, es�mates and assump�ons

The prepara�on of financial statements in conformity with IASs requires management to make judgments, es�mates and assump�ons

that affect the applica�on of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabili�es, income and expenses. The es�mates and related

assump�ons are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The es�mates and related assump�ons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Accoun�ng es�mates are revised in the period in which

such revisions are made and in any future periods affected.

Projected

Recoverable amount of assets/ cash genera�ng units

Deprecia�on method, rates and useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management of the Company reassesses useful lives, deprecia�on method and rates for each item of property, plant and

equipment annually by considering expected pa�ern of economic benefits that the Company expects to derive from that item.

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its assets and cash genera�ng units for possible impairment and

makes formal es�mates of recoverable amount if there is any such indica�on.

Fair value of financial instruments having no ac�ve market

Fair value of financial instruments having no ac�ve market is determined using discount cash flow analysis a�er incorpora�ng all

factors that market par�cipants would consider in se�ng a price and using inputs that reasonably represent market expecta�ons and

measures of the risk-return factors inherent in the financial instrument.

The financial statements of the Company indicate that the Company incurred gross loss amoun�ng to Rs: 340,215,498 (2017:

395,608,755) and net loss from opera�ons amoun�ng to Rs. 396,700,929 (2017: 455,761,957) and accumulated losses Rs.

3,278,500,546 (2017: 2,865,617,599). Moreover, the current liabili�es exceed current assets by Rs. 2,127,915,443 (2017:

1,957,436,411). 

Further as stated in note # 16.3 to the financial statements, the Supreme Court dismissed the appeal of the Company regarding

loca�on of factory.

In view of above issues Company has already taken following mi�ga�ng steps:

Shi�ing of mill to Alipur Jatoi, Muzaffargarh has been completed where sugar cane availability and sugar recovery are be�er.

The following interpreta�ons issued by the IASB have been waived of by SECP:

Determining whether an arrangement contains lease
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2.5.6

2.6 Func�onal currency

3

3.1 Ordinary share capital

3.2

3.3 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Defined benefit plan

2018 2017
Discount rate 7.75% 9.25%

Expected rate of salary increase in future years 6.75% 8.25%

Average expected remaining working life �me of employees 9 years 11 years

Actuarial valua�on method

3.4 Borrowings

3.5 Provisions

3.6 Taxa�on

The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for services rendered by

employees as a liability a�er deduc�ng amount already paid and as an expense in profit or loss unless it is included in the cost of

inventories or property, plant and equipment as permi�ed or required by the approved accoun�ng standards. If the amount paid

exceeds the discounted amount of benefits, the excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment would lead to a

reduc�on in future payments or cash refund.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering its permanent employees. Employees are eligible for benefits under

this scheme a�er the comple�on of a prescribed qualifying period of service. The latest actuarial valua�on was carried out as at

September 30, 2018. Charge for the current year is based on es�mates provided by the actuary as at September 30, 2018. The

following significant assump�ons were used in the latest actuarial valua�on:

Projected unit credit method

These are recognized ini�ally at fair value less a�ributable transac�on cost. Subsequent to ini�al recogni�on, these are stated at

amor�zed cost with any difference between cost and redemp�on value being recognized in the profit and loss over the period of the

borrowings on an effec�ve interest basis.

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or construc�ve obliga�on as a result of a past event and

it is probable that an ou�low of economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on and a reliable es�mate of the amount can

be made.

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss exceptis to the extent

that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Provisions are based on best es�mate of the expenditure required to se�le the present obliga�on at the repor�ng date, that is, the

amount that the Company would ra�onally pay to se�le the obliga�on at the repor�ng date or to transfer it to a third party.

Revalua�on of property, plant and equipment

Revalua�on of property, plant and equipment is carried out by independent professional valuer. Revalued amounts of non-

depreciable items are determined by reference to local market values and that of depreciable items are determined by reference to 

present depreciated replacement values.

The Company provides for compensated absences of its employees on unavailed balance of leaves in the period in which the leaves

are earned.

These financial statements are prepared in Pak Rupees which is the Company's func�onal and presenta�on currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accoun�ng policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements.

Ordinary share capital is recognized as equity. Incremental costs directly a�ributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as

deduc�on from equity.

Surplus / deficit arising on revalua�on of property, plant and equipment

Surplus arising on revalua�on of property, plant and equipment is recognized, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

reserves in shareholders' equity and is shown in equity. Revalua�on is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying

amounts of the assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Accumulated deprecia�on at the date of revalua�on is eliminated

against the cost of the asset and net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

The surplus on revalua�on of property, plant and equipment to the extent of incremental deprecia�on charged on the related

property, plant and equipment during the year is part of statement of changes in equity.

2.5.5 Provisions



Current

Deferred

3.7

3.8 Trade and other receivables

3.9 Property, plant and equipment

3.10 Impairment

3.11 Cash and cash equivalents

3.12 Stores, spares and loose tools

3.13 Stock in trade

Work in process Average manufacturing cost

Finished goods Average manufacturing cost

By-products Net realizable value, where costs are not ascertainable.

Trade and other payables

Liabili�es for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the considera�on to be paid in future for

goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Trade and other receivables are recognized ini�ally at fair value and subsequently measured at amor�zed cost less impairment loss, if

any.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprecia�on except freehold land that is stated at revalued

amount. Buildings, plant and machinery and grid sta�on and generators are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated

deprecia�on. Cost of property, plant and equipment consists of historical cost, revalued amount, borrowing costs pertaining to the

erec�on / construc�on period and other directly a�ributable costs incurred to bring the assets to their working condi�on. 

Deferred tax is not recognized for �ming differences that are not expected to reverse and for the temporary differences arising from

the ini�al recogni�on of goodwill and ini�al recogni�on of assets and liabili�es in a transac�on that is not a business combina�on and

that at the �me of transac�on affects neither the accoun�ng nor the taxable profit. 

Deprecia�on on property, plant and equipment has been provided for using the reducing balance method at the rates specified in

respec�ve note. Deprecia�on on addi�ons is charged from the month in which the asset was available for use up to the month in

which the asset was disposed off.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, if any, is shown in the profit and loss account.

Carrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indica�on of

impairment. If any such indica�on exists, the asset's recoverable amount is es�mated and impairment loss is recognized in the profit

and loss account.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents

comprise cash in hand and cash with banks in current and saving accounts.

These are generally held for internal use and are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the basis of

moving average except for items in transit, which are valued at invoice price plus related expenses incurred up to the repor�ng date.

For items iden�fied as slow moving, a provision is made for excess of carrying amount over es�mated net realizable value which

signifies the es�mated selling price in the ordinary course of business less es�mated costs of comple�on and es�mated cost

necessary to make the sale.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the following basis:

Average manufacturing cost in rela�on to work in process and finished goods consists of direct material, labor and a propor�on of

appropriate manufacturing overheads.

The management reviews the market value of revalued assets at each balance sheet date to ascertain whether the fair value of

revalued assets have differed materially from the carrying value of such assets, thus necessita�ng further revalua�on.

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substan�vely enacted by the

repor�ng date, and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years. Provision for current tax is based on the taxable

income at current rates of taxa�on in Pakistan a�er taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemp�ons available. However, for

income covered under final tax regime, taxa�on is based on applicable tax rates under such regime. The amount of unpaid income tax

in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the current or prior

periods is recognized as an asset.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method providing for temporary differences between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabili�es for financial repor�ng purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. In this regard, the effects on

deferred taxa�on of the por�on of income that is subject to final tax regime is also considered in accordance with the requirement of

"Technical Release - 27" of the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. Deferred tax is measured at rates that are expected to

be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been enacted or substan�vely enacted by the

repor�ng date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for

deduc�ble temporary differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be available against which temporary differences can

be u�lized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each repor�ng date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that

the related tax benefit will be realized.
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3.14 Financial instruments

3.15 Related party transac�ons

3.16 Revenue recogni�on

3.17 Borrowing costs

3.18 Dividends

Dividend is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is declared.

3.19 Finance Leases

3.20

4 Change in Accoun�ng Policy

Components purchased by the Company from related party are priced at cost plus margin.

Net realizable value signifies the es�mated selling price in the ordinary course of business less es�mated costs of comple�on and

es�mated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. It ceases to

recognize financial assets when it loses control of contractual rights and in case of financial liability when the liability is ex�nguished.

Any gain or loss on subsequent remeasurement / derecogni�on is charged to income.

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the Company has a legally

enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to se�le on a net basis or to realize the asset and se�le the

liability simultaneously.

All transac�ons with related par�es are carried out by the company at arms' length price with the excep�on of loan taken from 

related par�es which is interest / mark up free. Prices for these transac�ons are determined on the basis of comparable uncontrolled 

price method, which sets the price by reference to comparable goods and services sold in an economically comparable market to a 

buyer unrelated to the seller.

The specific provision / sec�on in the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 rela�ng to the surplus on revalua�on of fixed assets has 

not been carried forward in the Companies Act, 2017. Previously, sec�on 235 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 specified 

the accoun�ng treatment and presenta�on of the surplus on revalua�on of fixed assets, which was not in accordance with the IFRS 

requirements. Accordingly, in accordance with the requirements of Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standard (IAS) 16, Property, Plant and 

Equipment, surplus on revalua�on of fixed assets would now be presented under equity.

Following the applica�on of IAS 16, the Company's accoun�ng policy for surplus on revalua�on of fixed assets stands amended as 

follows:

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjus�ng basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on

conversion of all dilu�ve poten�al ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss a�ributable to

ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all dilu�ve poten�al ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss a�ributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the considera�on received or receivable, net of returns allowances, trade discounts and

rebates, and represents amounts received or receivable for goods and services provided and other opera�ng income earned in the

normal course of business. Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transac�on will

flow to the Company, and the amount of revenue and the associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably.

Revenue from different sources is recognized as follows:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when risk and rewards incidental to the ownership of goods are transferred.

Interest on saving accounts is recognized as and when accrued on �me propor�on basis.

Borrowing costs are charged to income as and when incurred except to the extent of costs directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on,

construc�on or produc�on of qualifying assets that are capitalized as part of the cost of asset.

Leases where the company has substan�ally all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Asset subject to

finance lease are ini�ally recognized at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and the

fair value of the assets. Subsequently these assets are stated at cost less accumulated deprecia�on and any iden�fied impairment

loss.

The related rental obliga�ons, net of finance charges, are included in liabili�es against assets subject to finance lease. The liabili�es

are classified as current and long term depending upon the �ming of the payment.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the balance outstanding.

The interest element of the rental is charged to profit over the lease term.

Assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the useful life of the asset on a reducing balance method at the rates

given respec�ve note.  Deprecia�on of leased assets is charged to income statement.

When a sale and lease transac�on results in a finance lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying amount are not be

immediately recognized as income in the profit and loss account, instead it is recognized as deferred income and amor�zed over the

lease term.

Earning per share (EPS)



35

 As 

Previously 

reported 

 Adjustment 

increase/ 

(decrease) 

As                 

re-stated

 As 

Previously 

reported 

 Adjustment 

increase/ 

(decrease) 

As                     

re-stated

Effect on Statement of Financial Posi�on

1,603,039  -               (1,603,039) 1,683,536  -              (1,683,536) 

-              1,603,039   1,603,039   -              1,683,536  1,683,536   

Effect on statement of changes in equity

-              1,603,039   1,603,039   -              1,683,536  1,683,536   

Revalua�on surplus on property, plant & 

equipment  (within equity)

Revalua�on surplus on property, plant & 

equipment  (Capital reserve)

The effect of change in accoun�ng policy is summarized below:

As at 30 September 2016As at 30 September 2017

Rupees in Thousand

Revalua�on surplus on property, plant & 

equipment  (below equity)

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revalua�on of fixed assets are recognised, in other comprehensive income and 

accumulated in revalua�on surplus in shareholders' equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in 

the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous 

increases of the same asset are first recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus a�ributable to 

the asset. All other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss. Each year, the difference between deprecia�on based on 

the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of profit or loss and deprecia�on based on the asset's original 

cost, is reclassified from revalua�on surplus on property, plant and equipment to unappropriated profit.

The change in accoun�ng policy has been accounted for retrospec�vely in accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 'Accoun�ng 

Policies, Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates and Errors' and compara�ve figures have been restated.
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5 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each:

27,000,000 (2017: 27,000,000) shares issued for cash. 270,000,000 270,000,000

5,400,000 (2017: 5,400,000) shares issued as fully paid bonus shares. 54,000,000 54,000,000

324,000,000 324,000,000

All ordinary shareholders have same rights regarding vo�ng, board selec�on, right of first refusal and block vo�ng.

6 LOAN FROM DIRECTORS AND SPONSORS

Loan from directors 829,647,072 804,314,867

829,647,072

            

804,314,867

         

2018 2017

7 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

As at beginning of the year 1,603,039,450

         

1,683,536,288

      

Revalua�on surplus transferred to unappropriated profit on account of

incremental deprecia�on (net of tax) (76,015,081)

             

(80,496,838)

          

1,527,024,369
         

1,603,039,450
      

7.1

7.2

2018 2017

8 LONG TERM FINANCING

Loan from Banking Companies - secured 8.1 549,373,562

            

1,050,739,048

      

8.1 Loan from banking companies and other 

                   financial ins�tu�ons - secured

Na�onal Bank of Pakistan

- Demand Finance I 8.1.1 220,000,000

            

220,000,000

         

- Demand Finance II 8.1.2 160,000,000

            

160,000,000

         

- Demand Finance 8.1.3 285,000,000

            

285,000,000

         

- Demand Finance 8.1.4 500,000,000

            

500,000,000

         

PAIR 

Demand Finance 8.1.5 70,000,000

               

70,000,000

           

Silk Bank Ltd 8.1.6 390,000,000

            

390,000,000

         

1,625,000,000 1,625,000,000
Less: current por�on shown under current liabili�es

- (180,000,000) (110,000,000)
- (160,000,000) (160,000,000)
- (171,000,000) (114,000,000)
- (377,626,438) (120,260,952)

Demand Finance - PAIR (70,000,000) (70,000,000)
- Demand Finance - Silk Bank Ltd (117,000,000) -

(1,075,626,438) (574,260,952)
549,373,562 1,050,739,048

The Bank of Punjab

The revalua�on surplus on property, plant and equipment is restated and now presented as a separate capital

reserve in the financial statements (note # 4).

These loan has been obtained from Sponsors and Members of the Company, and is interest free. There is no fixed tenor or

schedule for repayment of this loan. According to the loan agreement, the lenders shall not demand repayment and the

same is en�rely at the Company's op�on. Further, directors' loan is subordinated to Na�onal Bank of Pakistan, The Bank

of Punjab, Sindh Bank Limited and Silk Bank Ltd.

These loans are accounted for under Technical Release - 32 “Accoun�ng Directors’ Loan” issued by the Ins�tute of

Chartered Accountants of Pakistan effec�ve for the financial statements for the period beginning on or a�er January 01,

2016 with earlier applica�on permi�ed.

Rupees

The revalua�on surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and is not available for distribu�on

to the shareholders in accordance with sec�on 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Rupees 

Sindh Bank Limited

NBP -  Demand Finance - I
NBP -  Demand Finance - II

Sindh Bank -  Demand Finance 
BOP -  Demand Finance 

2018 2017

                     

Rupees 



37

8.1.1

8.1.2

8.1.3

8.1.4

8.1.5

8.1.6

2018 2017

9 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

Opening balance 38,687,642

               

38,687,642

           
Less: Payment made / security deposits adjusted during the year (11,500,000)

             

-

                          
27,187,642

               

38,687,642

           
Current por�on shown under current liabili�es (27,187,642)

             

(38,687,642)

          
-

                             

-

                          

Gross minimum lease payments

Not later than one year 32,449,440

               

43,949,440

           

Later than one year but not later than five years -

                             

-

                          

32,449,440

               

43,949,440

           

Less: financial charges allocated to future period (5,261,798)

               

(5,261,798)

            

27,187,642

               

38,687,642

           

Less: current maturity shown under current liabili�es (27,187,642)

             

(38,687,642)

          

-

                             

-

                          

Present value of  minimum lease payments

Not later than one year 27,187,642 38,687,642

Later than one year but not later than five years - -

27,187,642 38,687,642

The finance is secured by 1st PP charge of Rs. 213.334 million on fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of

sponsoring directors of the Company. It carries markup @ 3 months KIBOR + 2.5% per annum. This loan is payable in

twelve equal quarterly instalments ending on 30 September 2018, within a period of 3 years excluding 1 year grace

period. 

This finance has been obtained from Sindh Bank Limited under demand finance arrangement. The finance is secured by

ranking charge over all present and future fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of directors of the

Company. It carries markup 3 months KIBOR + 5% per annum. This loan is payable in twelve quarterly instalments ending

on 09 June 2020.

This finance has been obtained from PAIR Investment Company Limited. The finance is secured by parri passsu charges

over the present and future fixed assets of the Company, with a margin of 33% above the financing amount. Parri passu

charge by way of crea�on of mortgage over the land and building of the Company and personal guarantees of directors of

the Company. It carries markup 3 months KIBOR +350 bps per annum. This loan is rescheduled and payable in eighteen

monthly installments.

This finance has been obtained from Silk Bank Limited under demand finance arrangement. The finance is secured by Pari

passu charge over all present and future fixed assets of the Company and corporate guarantee of Abdullah Sugar Mills Ltd.

and personal guarantees of directors of the Company. It carries markup 6 months KIBOR + 2% per annum. This loan is

payable in twelve quarterly instalments ending on 21 February 2023.

The Company has entered into sale and lease back agreement with First Na�onal Bank Modaraba for plant and machinery. 

It carries markup at the rate of six months average KIBOR + 4% .

The finance is secured by 1st PP charge of Rs. 293.334 million on fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of

sponsoring directors of the Company. It carries markup 3 months KIBOR + 2.5% per annum. This loan is payable in ten bi-

annual instalments ending on 21 March 2020, within a period of 5 years excluding 1 year grace period.

This finance has been obtained from The Bank of Punjab through restructuring of exis�ng cash finance facility. The finance

is secured by ranking charge over all present and future fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of directors

of the Company. It carries markup 3 months KIBOR +1.25% per annum. This loan is payable in twenty eight quarterly

instalments ending on 30 September 2021. 

Rupees
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2018 2017
Rupees 

10 DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Employee re�rement benefits 10.01 17,343,374 39,158,944

10.01 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The amounts recognized in the the Statement of Financial Posi�on are as follows

Present value of defined benefit obliga�on 17,343,374 39,158,944

the Statement of Financial Posi�on liability

Opening balance 39,158,944

               

34,397,335

           

Amount recognized during the year 1,459,131

                 

5,901,936

              

Remeasurements (5,273)

                       

(21,327)

                  

40,612,802

               

40,277,944

           

Payable to outgoing employees (22,982,471)

             

-

                          

Benefits paid during the year (286,957)

                   

(1,119,000)

            

Closing balance 17,343,374

               

39,158,944

           

Charge for the defined benefit plan

Service cost 966,312

                    

3,905,061

              

Interest cost 492,819

                    

1,996,875

              

1,459,131

                 

5,901,936

              

10.02

2018 2017
10.03 Comparison for five years

YEAR
Present 

Value

Experience

Adjustment

2014 22,792,246

               
3,323,925

              

2015 30,035,431
               

113,427
                 

2016 34,397,335
               

163,979
                 

2017 39,158,944               21,327                   
2018 17,343,374               5,273                     

2018 2017

11 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences

Accelerated tax deprecia�on 146,349,917

            

163,944,459

         
Surplus on revalua�on of property, plant and equipment 711,791,999

            

751,500,050

         
858,141,916

            

915,444,509

         

Deferred tax asset on deduc�ble temporary differences

Employees re�rement benefits (11,696,024)

             

(11,754,081)

          

Finance lease (7,884,416)

               

(11,606,293)

          

Unused tax losses (119,002,928)

           

(119,002,927)

        

(138,583,368)

           

(142,363,301)

        

719,558,548

            

773,081,208

         12 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors 196,191,331

            

249,342,789

         

Advances from Customers -Unsecured 262,253,957

            

433,809,426

         

Accrued liabili�es 70,784,103 33,736,264

Sales tax payable 209,381,949 175,845,081

Other payables 12.1 75,861,293 68,853,123
814,472,632 961,586,683

12.1

Rupees

The scheme provides for terminal benefits for all its permanent employees who a�ain the minimum qualifying

period at varying percentages of last drawn basic salary. The percentage depends on the number of service years

with the Company. Annual charge is based on actuarial valua�on carried out as at September 30, 2018, using

Project Unit Credit Method.

Deferred tax assets of Rs. 722 million (2017: 1,097 million) on taxable losses have not been recognized due to

unpredictability of adjustable in future periods.

Other payables include an amount of Rs. 30,564,611 of penalty imposed by Trading Corpora�on of Pakistan (TCP). The

Company is defending a suit filed by TCP for recovery before Honorable Sindh High Courts, and the case s�ll pending. 

Rupees
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13 MARKUP ON LOANS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Long term financing 360,735,863 247,840,220

Finance lease 954,816 954,816

Short term borrowings 15,012,500 15,012,500

Others 13.01 19,862,810 19,862,810

396,565,989 283,670,346

13.01 This represents markup accrued penalty as disclosed in note 11.1

2018 2017

14 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Loan from related par�es

Abdullah Sugar Mills Limited 667,375,471

            

572,331,116

         

Haseeb Waqas Trading (Private) Limited 2,204,064

                 

2,204,064

              

669,579,535

            

574,535,180

         

15 CURRENT PORTION OF NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing 1,075,626,438

         

574,260,952

         

Finance lease 27,187,642

               

38,687,642

           

1,102,814,080

         

612,948,594

         

16 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

Company has made defaults in repayment of installment of long term loans form financial ins�tu�ons and bank. As a

result, company's name has been included in CIB report of State Bank of Pakistan. The detail of the cases are as:

The Division Bench of Honorable Lahore High Court Lahore in its judgment dated September 11, 2017 has ordered the

reloca�on of Haseeb Waqas Sugar Mills Limited from Nankana to Muzaffar Garh. Furthermore, Lahore High Court directed

the mills to restore and res�tute the posi�on by dismantling & removing the said mills from the present loca�on.

The Supreme Court of Pakistan vide short order even dated September 13, 2018 dismissed the Company's appeal and

prohibited the Company from conduc�ng any business in rela�on to or func�oning as a sugar mill a�er the periond of two

months i.e. 12 November 2018. Further, the appellants are directed to remove within the said period from Muzaffar Garh

(current factory loca�on) to Nankana (pervious factory loca�on). 

However, the Company has filled review pe��on dated 6th November 2018 to review the above order and accept the

appeal filed by the pe��oners; which is s�ll pending on part of the Supreme Court.

Principal par�es for respondents are Govt. of the Punjab, JDW Sugar Mills Limited, Ashraf Sugar Mills Limited, Indus Sugar

Mills Limited RYK Mills Limited etc.

Rupees

These are unsecured, interest free and payable on demand of the related par�es and for the purpose of working capital of

the Company; and be adjusted against sale of goods etc. 

The collector of Sales Tax And Central Excise (Adjudica�on) Lahore has issued a show cause no�ce to the Company for the

further tax amoun�ng to Rs. 47 million upto the tax period September 2002 on the grounds that it charged sales tax at the

rate of 15 % on its sales to persons liable to be registered.

Commitments
No major commitments were outstanding as at 30 September 2018.

The Federal Board of Revenue has blacklisted the Sales Tax status of the Company on 8th March 2018 due to non

compliance of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 and the rules made thereunder including not discharging of sales tax liability as

outstanding in note # 12. However, the Company will further proceed to restate the sales tax status a�er star�ng of

crushing season with permission of Superme Court.

Sr. #
Name of the 

Court

Date 

Instituted
Principal parties

Description of the factual basis of the 

proceedings

Relief 

sought
1 Lahore High Court 3-May-17 Sindh Bank 

Limited
Default in repayment of principal amount of long 
term loans along with markup

rescheduling 
of loan

2 Lahore High Court 29-Jan-16 The Bank of 
Punjab

Default in repayment of principal amount of long 
term loans along with markup

rescheduling 
of loan

3 Lahore High Court 22-Sep-16 National Bank of 
Pakistan

Default in repayment of principal amount of long 
term loans along with markup

rescheduling 
of loan

4 Banking Courts 31-Mar-17 First National Bank 
Modarba

Default in repayment of principal amount of long 
term loans along with markup

rescheduling 
of loan

5 Banking Courts 20-Apr-18 PAIR Investment 
Company Limited

Default in repayment of principal amount of long 
term loans along with markup

rescheduling 
of loan

2018 2017
Rupees 
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18 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

These mainly comprise of security deposits with Central Depository Company and Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited and 

other security receivables at factory loca�on.

24.01
                               
                                  Salaries and benefits include Rs. 2.013 million (2017: Rs.2.228 million) on account of employee re�rement 

benefits.

2018 2017

19 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 55,521,470 44,220,554
Spares 163,397 99,274

55,684,867 44,319,828
19.1 No iden�fiable store and spare are held for specific capitaliza�on.

20 STOCK IN TRADE

Work in process
Sugar -

                             

-

                          

Molasses -

                             

-

                          

-

                             

-

                          

Finished goods
Sugar -

                             

-

                          

-

                             

-

                          

21 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND 

    OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good

Advances to employees:

 - against purchases 785,818

                    

729,416

                 

 - against salaries - secured 21.01 992,334

                    

630,445

                 

Advances to growers - unsecured 21.02 85,863,715

               

385,779,642

         

Advance income tax 35,442,532

               

33,918,443

           

Deposits 21.03 8,712,721

                 

8,712,721

              

131,797,120

            

429,770,667

         

21.01

21.02

21.03

22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 338,382

                    
79,734

                   Cash with banks - in current accounts 1,764,925

                 

2,578,135

              
2,103,307

                 

2,657,869

              23 SALES - NET
- Sugar - Local 266,173,800

            

875,158,015

         

- Molasses 22,428,900

               

63,314,846

           

- Mud 817,444

                    

2,351,435

              

289,420,144

            

940,824,296

         

Less: Sales tax and federal excise duty (38,647,416)

             

(93,549,401)

          

250,772,728

            

847,274,895

         

24 COST OF GOODS SOLD
Raw materials consumed 304,047,313

            

850,352,098

         

Stores and spares consumed 21,318,053

               

30,092,241

           

Salaries, wages and other benefits 24.01 55,780,651

               

100,126,239

         

Insurance -

                             

3,789,279

              

Repair and maintenance 25,512,928

               

56,048,939

           

Deprecia�on 17.3 184,106,977

            

196,069,289

         

Others 222,304

                    

899,390

                 

590,988,226

            

1,237,377,475

      

Opening work in process - 5,506,175
Closing work in process - -

- 5,506,175
Cost of goods manufactured 590,988,226 1,242,883,650

Opening finished goods - -
Closing finished goods - -

- -
590,988,226 1,242,883,650

These represent interest free unsecured deposit with TCP and will likely be set off against the libility as

men�oned in note # 12.1.

These are interest free amounts advanced to staff against future salaries and re�rement benefits and are in

accordance with the Company policy.

These represent interest free unsecured advances given to sugarcane growers against future procurement of

sugarcane and are in consonance with other sugar manufacturers securing future supplies of sugarcane.

Rupees
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2018 2017

25 ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES
Director's remunera�on 7,200,000 4,200,000
Salaries, wages and other benefits 25.01 17,595,713 20,497,292

U�li�es 733,806 880,180

Traveling and conveyance 971,320 1,180,894
Rent, rates and taxes 2,400,000 2,400,000

Repairs and maintenance 5,560,727 1,994,581
Fees and subscrip�on 2,207,382 614,929
Vehicle running and maintenance 4,109,336 6,245,783
Prin�ng and sta�onery 432,398

                    

283,529

                 

Telephone and postage 1,163,361

                 

954,394

                 

Adver�sement 2,175

                         

176,375

                 

Entertainment 1,093,274

                 

768,106

                 

Legal and professional charges 3,761,745

                 

8,554,845

              

Deprecia�on 17.3 6,938,351

                 

7,443,492

              

Miscellaneous 2,770,845

                 

3,961,538

              

56,940,434

               

60,155,938

           

25.01

26 OTHER OPERATING CHARGES

Auditors' remunera�on

- Statutory audit 500,000

                    

500,000

                 

- Half year review 60,000

                      

60,000

                   

- Review and cer�fica�ons 40,000

                      

40,000

                   

- Out of pocket 25,000

                      
25,000

                   

625,000
                    

625,000
                 

27 OTHER OPERATING INCOME  
Income from financial assets

Return on bank deposit 890,760
                    

38,000
                   Income from non-financial assets

Gain on sale of fixed assets 189,242

                    

589,736

                 
1,080,002

                 

627,736

                 28 FINANCE COST

Interest / mark up on:

Long term financing 145,675,065

            

122,391,580

         

Bank charges and commission 49,966

                      

197,167

                 

145,725,031

            

122,588,747

         

2018 2017

29 TAXATION

Current tax -

                             

-

                          

Deferred tax (53,524,189)

             

(5,642,813)

            

(53,524,189)

             

(5,642,813)

            

29.01

29.02 Major components of current tax are as follows:

Minimum turnover tax                  3,134,659             10,590,936 

Tax credits availed                 (3,134,659)           (10,590,936)

29.03

Year

Provision as per

financial 

statements

Tax assessment

2015                                 -                                -   

2016                                 -                                -   

2017                                 -                                -   

No tax reconcilia�on between applicable tax rate and average tax rate is shown because the company is not liable to tax 

under normal tax regime.

 Rupees 

The comparison of tax provision as per the financial statements viz-a-viz tax assessment for last three years is as follows:

Salaries and benefits include Rs. 1.781  million (2017: Rs. 3.674 million) on account of  employees re�rement 

benefits.

Rupees
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30 EARNING PER SHARE - Basic

(Loss) a�er taxa�on for the year (488,901,772)

           

(572,707,893)

        

Outstanding weighted average ordinary shares  32,400,000

               

32,400,000

           

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (15.09)

                       

(17.68)

                    

30.1

31 PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

Processed cane

Installed capacity (tones) 576,000
                    

576,000
                 

Installed capacity (days) 72
                              

72
                           

Actual crushing (tones) 76,820
                      

177,186
                 

Actual crushing (days) 38
                              

72
                           

Actual produc�on (percentage of actual capacity in tones) 13.34% 30.76%

Sugar

Installed capacity (tones) 48,987
                      

49,536
                   

Installed capacity (days) 38                              72                           

Actual produc�on (tones) 5,808                         15,243                   

Actual produc�on (days) 38                              72                           

Actual produc�on (percentage of actual capacity in tones) 11.86% 30.77%
Cane sugar recovery 8.50% 8.60%

The reason for shor�all in actual produc�on is disclosed in note # 16.4 to the financial statements.

2018 2017
32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

-As at Statement of Financial Posi�on at amor�zed cost:

Financial assets 

Long term deposits                      490,000             11,990,000 

Advances, deposits and other receivables              131,797,120           429,770,667 

Cash and bank balances                  2,103,307               2,657,869 

             134,390,427           444,418,536 

Financial liabili�es

Trade and other payables              814,472,632           961,586,683 

Accrued interest/mark-up              396,565,989           283,670,346 

Short term borrowings              669,579,535           574,535,180 

          1,880,618,156       1,819,792,209 

32.01 Fair values of financial assets and liabili�es

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability se�led, between knowledgeable 

willing par�es in an arms length transac�on. 

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabili�es reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair 

values. 

 Rupees 

Rupees 

No. of shares

Rupees 

Diluted earnings per share

There is no dilu�on effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company as the Company has no such 

commitments.



33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

    33.01 Fair value and risk management

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es (Level 1).

-

-

33.02

   

Fair value is the amount that would be received on sale of an asset or paid on transfer of a liability in an orderly 

transac�on between market par�cipants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between 

carrying values and fair value es�mates. Underlying the defini�on of fair value is the presump�on that the 

Company is a going concern without any inten�on or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its opera�ons 

or to undertake a transac�on on adverse terms.

The fair value of assets amd liabili�es traded in ac�ve markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on the quoted 

market prices at the close of trading on the period end date. The quoted market prices used for financial assets 

held by the Company is current bid price. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an ac�ve market if 

quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchnage, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service 

or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occuring market transac�ons on an arm's 

length basis.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Company to clasiify fair value measurements using a fair value 

hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy 

has the following levels:

inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservabe inputs) (Level 

3)

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabili�es, 

including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. However, fair values are not disclosed as carrying values are 

reasonable appproxima�on of their net fair value.

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Fair Value 

through 

Profit or 

Loss

Loans        

and 

receivables

Other financial 

liabilities
Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

30 September, 2018
Financial Assets not measured at fair value

-

              

96,354,588

   

-

                   

96,354,588

           

-

         

-

         

-

         

-

         Long Term Deposits -

              

490,000

        

-

                   

490,000

                

-

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

Cash and bank balances -

              

2,103,307

     

-

                   

2,103,307

             

-

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

-

              

98,947,895

   

-

                   

98,947,895

           

-

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

Financial Liabilities not measured at fair value

Loan from banking companies -

              

-

               

1,625,000,000

 

1,625,000,000

       

-

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

Trade and other payables -

              

-

               

196,191,331

    

196,191,331

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

Accrued Markup -

              

-

               

396,565,989

    

396,565,989

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

Unclaimed Dividend -

              

-

               

1,443,972

        

1,443,972

             

-

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

Loan from related parties -

              

-

               

669,579,535

    

669,579,535

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

-

              

-

               

2,888,780,827

 

2,888,780,827

       

-

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

30 September, 2017
Financial Assets not measured at fair value

-

              

395,852,224

 

-

                   

395,852,224

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

Long Term Deposits -

              

11,990,000

   

-

                   

11,990,000

           

-

         

-

         

-

         

-

         

Cash and bank balances - 2,657,869 - 2,657,869 - - - -
- 410,500,093 - 410,500,093 - - - -

Financial Liabilities not measured at fair value
Loan from banking companies - - 1,625,000,000 1,625,000,000 - - - -
Trade and other payables - - 249,342,789 249,342,789 - - - -
Accrued Markup - - 283,670,346 283,670,346 - - - -
Unclaimed Dividend - - 1,443,972 1,443,972 - - - -
Loan from related parties - - 574,535,180 574,535,180 - - - -

- - 2,733,992,287 2,733,992,287 - - - -

Advances, deposits, prepayments 

Carrying amount Fair Value

Advances, deposits, prepayments 
and other receivables

45
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    33.03 Capital risk management

2018 2017

Rupees           1,652,187,642       1,663,687,642 

Rupees              669,579,535           574,535,180 

Rupees           2,321,769,195       2,238,224,839 

Total Equity Rupees            (597,829,105)         (134,263,282)
Rupees           1,723,940,090       2,103,961,557 

-35% -6%

    33.04 Financial risk factors 

(a) Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk 

Financial liabili�es

2018 2017 2018 2017

Long term financing  7.40 to 11.93  7.40 to 11.15           1,625,000,000       1,625,000,000 

Total yield / markup rate risk sensi�vity gap           1,625,000,000       1,625,000,000 

Fair value sensi�vity  analysis for fixed rate instruments:

Cash flow sensi�vity  analysis for variable rate instruments:

Increase Decrease

As at September 30, 2018

Cash flow sensi�vity - variable rate financial liabili�es 16,250,000 (16,250,000)

As at September 30, 2017

Cash flow sensi�vity - variable rate financial liabili�es 16,250,000 (16,250,000)

Gearing ra�o

The Company’s objec�ves when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going 

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an 

op�mal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. There were no changes to Company's approach to capital 

management during the year. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed Capital requirements. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in the light of changes in economic 

condi�ons. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue right shares or nego�ate with 

banks for new financing or restructure exuis�ng financing. 

The gearing ra�os were as follows:

Long term financing

Short term financing

Total debt

Capital employed

Percentage Rupees

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market interest rates. As the Company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Company’s 

income and resultantly opera�ng cash flows are substan�ally independent of changes in market interest rates.

At the repor�ng date, the interest rate profile of the company's significant interest bearing financial instruments 

was as follows:

The company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabili�es at fair value through profit and 

loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the repor�ng date would not affect profit and loss account.

Effect on Profit and Loss 1% rate

The Company’s ac�vi�es expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate 

risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management programme 

focuses on having cost effec�ve funding as well as to manage financial risk to minimize earnings vola�lity and 

provide maximum return to shareholders. 

Risk management is carried out by the Company’s finance department under policies approved by the Board of 

Directors.
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Geographically, there is no concentra�on of credit risk.

(iii) Foreign currency risk

(b) Credit risk 

2018 2017

Long term deposits                      490,000             11,990,000 
Advances, deposits, prepayments and
      other receivables              131,797,120           429,770,667 
Cash and bank balances                  2,103,307               2,657,869 

134,390,427
            

444,418,536
         

Ra�ng 
agency

United Bank Limited JCR-VIS A-1+ AAA
The Bank of Punjab PACRA A1+ AA
Sindh Bank Limited JCR-VIS A-1+ AA
MCB Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AAA
Na�onal Bank of Pakistan JCR-VIS A-1+ AAA

The Company does not have any commitment or balance in foreign currency as at financial posi�on date which 

result in foreign currency risk.

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks, trade debts, loans and advances, deposits and other receivables. The 

company seeks to minimize the credit risk exposure through having exposures only to customers considered 

credit worthy and obtaining securi�es where applicable. Where considered necessary, advance payments are 

obtained from certain par�es. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of financial 

assets. Out of the total financial assets of Rs. 134,390,429 (2017: Rs. 444,418,539) the financial assets exposed to 

credit risk amount to Rs. 98,609,515 (2017: Rs.410,420,358).

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk), whether those 

changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affec�ng all 

similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to equity securi�es price risk as 

there is no investment in listed securi�es. 

Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter par�es fail to discharge an obliga�on. 

Rupees

Bank

Short Term

Borrowings

Long Term

Loans

The Company monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance of such 

assets and available external credit ra�ngs. The carrying values of financial assets which have not impaired are as 

under:

The credit quality of receivables can be assessed with reference to their historical performance with no or some 

defaults in recent history, however, no losses. The credit quality of Company’s bank balances can be assessed 

with reference to external credit.

(ii) Other price risk 
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(c) Liquidity risk 

Carrying 

Amount

Contractual 

cash flows

Upto twelve

months

Two to five

years

Financial Liabili�es

Loan from banking companies 1,625,000,000
      

1,625,000,000
      

1,075,626,438
   

549,373,562
       

Trade and other payables 196,191,331
         

196,191,331
         

196,191,331
      

-
                       

Accrued Markup 396,565,989
         

396,565,989
         

396,565,989
      

-
                       

Unclaimed Dividend 1,443,972              1,443,972              -                       1,443,972           

Loan from related par�es 669,579,535         669,579,535         669,579,535      -                       

2,888,780,827      2,888,780,827      2,337,963,293   550,817,534       

Financial Assets

96,354,588            96,354,588            96,354,588         -                       

Long Term Deposits 490,000                 490,000                 -                       490,000               

Cash and bank balances 2,103,307              2,103,307              2,103,307           -                       
98,947,895            98,947,895            98,457,895         490,000               

(2,789,832,932)     (2,789,832,932)     (2,239,505,398)  (550,327,534)      

Carrying 

Amount

Contractual 

cash flows

Upto twelve

months

Two to five

years

Financial Liabili�es

Loan from banking companies 1,625,000,000
      

1,625,000,000
      

574,260,952
      

1,050,739,048
    

Trade and other payables 249,342,789
         

249,342,789
         

249,342,789
      

-
                       

Accrued Markup 283,670,346
         

283,670,346
         

283,670,346
      

-
                       Unclaimed Dividend 1,443,972

              
1,443,972

              
-

                       
1,443,972

           Loan from related par�es 574,535,180
         

574,535,180
         

574,535,180
      

-
                       2,733,992,287

      
2,733,992,287

      
1,681,809,267
   

1,052,183,020
    Financial Assets

395,852,224

         
395,852,224

         
395,852,224

      
-

                       Long Term Deposits 11,990,000

            

11,990,000

            

-

                       

11,990,000

         Cash and bank balances 2,657,869

              

2,657,869

              

2,657,869

           

-

                       410,500,093

         

410,500,093

         

398,510,093

      

11,990,000

         
(2,323,492,194) (2,323,492,194) (1,283,299,174) (1,040,193,020)

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other 

receivables

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other 

receivables

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficul�es in mee�ng obliga�ons associated with

financial liabili�es. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securi�es, the

availability of funding through an adequate commi�ed credit facili�es and directors and sponsor of the Company. 

The table shows analyses how management monitors net liquidity based on details of the remaining contractual

maturi�es of financial assets and liabili�es. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash

flows.

2018

2017
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The Company during the year entered into transac�ons with the following related par�es:

Name of Related Party Nature of rela�onship

Abdullah Sugar Mills Limited Associate (common management/directorship) 8.952

Haseeb Waqas Trading (Private) Limited Associate (common management/directorship) 0

Mian Waqas Riaz Director 2.37

Mrs. Shehzadi Ilyas Director 7.42

Mrs. Zainab Waqas Director 1.029

Mian Haseeb Ilyas Chief Execu�ve / Director 6.832

Mian Abdullah Ilyas Director 9.218

Key Management Personnel Employer - Employee

34.1

2018 2017

34.1.1 Transac�ons with related par�es

Sale of molasses

Abdullah Sugar Mills Limited 22,428,900

         

63,314,846

         

(Repayment) / Obtain loan (to) / from - net:

Abdullah Sugar Mills Limited 117,473,255
      

325,587,594
      

Mrs. Shehzadi Ilyas 21,243,981         185,691,318      

Mian Abdullah Ilyas 4,088,224           -                       
Mian Haseeb Ilyas -                       2,808,785           
Mian Abdullah Ilyas -

                       
603,500

              

34.1.2

34.2 Details of related party balances are as follows:

2018 2017
34.2.1 Balances payable to related par�es

Haseeb Waqas Trading (Private) Limited            2,204,064            2,204,064 

Abdullah Sugar Mills Limited        667,375,471 572,331,116

      

Mian Waqas Riaz 15,597,680

         

15,597,680

         

Mrs. Shehzadi Ilyas 400,109,199

      

378,865,218

      

Mrs. Zainab Waqas 117,500,100

      

117,500,100

      

Mian Haseeb Ilyas 252,231,650

      

252,231,650

      

Mian Abdullah Ilyas 44,208,443

         

40,120,219

         

34.3 Compensa�on of directors, chief execu�ve and execu�ves

Chief
Execu�ve Directors Execu�ves

Short-term employee benefits

Remunera�on            2,700,000            4,500,000            3,248,000 

Post employment benefits

Re�rement benefits paid                           -                             -                             -   

           2,700,000            4,500,000            3,248,000 

No. of persons 1 2 2

Related par�es comprise holding company, subsidiaries and associated undertakings, other related group

companies, key management personnel including Chief execu�ve, Directors and Execu�ves and Post

employment benefit plans. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transac�ons with various

related par�es. Details of related party transac�ons and balances are as follows:

Details of related party transac�ons other than those with key management personnel

The Company during the year entered into following transac�ons with related par�es other than key

management personnel:

 Rupees 

Payments against balances due to related par�es were made par�ally in cash and par�ally by

paying for expenses on behalf of related par�es and vice versa.

% of 

Shareholding

Rupees

Year ended 30 September 2018
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Chief

Execu�ve Directors Execu�ves

Short-term employee benefits

Remunera�on            2,700,000            1,500,000            8,220,000 

Post employment benefits

Re�rement benefits paid                           -                             -                             -   

           2,700,000            1,500,000            8,220,000 

No. of persons 1 2 3

35 ENTITY WIDE INFORMATION

Informa�on about geographical areas

Informa�on about major customers

36 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total
Average number of employees during the year 229 292

Number of employees as at September 30 136 179

Plant

Average number of employees during the year 199 224

Number of employees as at September 30 99 121

37 AUTHORIZATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 GENERAL

- Figures have been rounded off to the nearest of Pakistani Rupees,

-

From To Rupees

Trade and other payables Unclaimed dividend            1,443,972 

Note # 12 On face of Statement of Financial Posi�on

The Chief Execu�ve and the Directors of the Company have waived their right to receive mee�ng fee.

Addi�onally, Chief Execu�ve and one Director are provided with free use of cellular phones and Company

maintained cars.

Number of employees

Compara�ve figures have been rearranged / reclassified, wherever necessary, to facilitate comparison.  

However, during major reclassifica�on made (other than disclosed in note # 4) due to applica�on of 4th 

Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 are:

The Company cons�tutes of a single reportable segment, the principal product is refined white sugar.

The Company does not hold non-current assets in any foreign country. Revenues from customers a�ributed to  

foreign countries is nil during the current year.

The Company does not have transac�ons with any external customer which amount to 10 percent or more of its 

revenues.

These financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on January

02, 2019.

Year ended 30 September 2017

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mian Haseeb Ilyas Mian Abdullah Ilyas Syed Mubashir Hussain Bukhari



HASEEB WAQAS SUGAR MILLS LIMITED 
 

FORM OF PROXY 
 

The Company Secretary 
Haseeb Waqas Sugar Mills Limited 
06-F, Model Town,  
Lahore. 

 
Folio No./CDC A/C No.: _______________________ 
 
Shares Held: _________________________________ 

Op�on 1 
Appoin�ng other person as Proxy 

 
I / We __________________________________________________________________    S/o  D/o  W/o 
                                                   CNIC __________________________ being the member(s) of HASEEB WAQAS 
SUGAR MILLS LIMITED hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Ms. ____________________ S/o D/o W/o 
_________________________________________ CNIC ________________________ or failing him/her 
Mr./Mrs. /Ms. __________________ S/o D/o W/o ________________________ CNIC 
__________________________ as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General 
Mee�ng of the Company to be held on 25 January 2019 at 09:00 a.m. and or any adjournment thereof.  
 
 
Signed under my/our hands on this this               day of                       2019. 
 
 

 
             Signature of Member 

(The Signature should agree with the specimen 
registered with the Company) 

Signed in the presence of: 
 
Witness: 
Signature: __________________________ 
  

 
Witness: 
Signature: ___________________________ 
  

Op�on 2 
E-Vo�ng as per the Companies (E-Vo�ng) Regula�ons 2016 

 
I/We ______________________________ S/o D/o W/o __________________CNIC __________________ 
being a member of Haseeb Waqas Sugar Mills Limited holder of _______________Class _____Ordinary share(s) 
as per Registered Folio No. ______________ hereby opt for e-vo�ng through intermediary and hereby consent 
the appointment of execu�on officer ________________ as proxy and will exercise e -vo�ng as per the 
Companies (E-Vo�ng) Regula�ons, 2016 and hereby demand for poll for resolu�ons. My second email address 
is ______________________, please send login details, password and electronic signature through email.  
 
______________________ 
Signature of member 
(Signature should agree with the specimen signature registered with the company) 
 
Signed in the presence of: 
 
Witness: 
Signature: __________________________ 
  

 
Witness: 
Signature: ___________________________ 
  

 

Please afx Five 
Rupees Revenue 

Stamp  



Notes 
 

1. A member eligible to a�end and vote at the mee�ng may appoint another member as proxy to a�end 
and vote in the mee�ng. Proxies in order to be effec�ve must be received by the company at the 
Registered Officer not later than 48 hours before the �me of holding the mee�ng. 

2. In order to be valid, an instrument of proxy and the power of a�orney or ot her authority (if any) under 
which it is signed, or a notarially cer�fied copy of such power of a�orney, must be deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company not less then 48 hours before the �me of the mee�ng. Pursuant to 
SECP Companies (E-Vo�ng) Regula�ons, 2016. Members can also exercise their right to vote through 
e-vo�ng by giving their consent in wri�ng at least 10 days before the date of the mee�ng to the 
company on the appointment of execu�on officer by the intermediary as proxy.

 
 

a)
 

Individual beneficial owners of CDC en�tled to a�end and vote at the mee�ng must bring his/her 
par�cipant ID and account/sub-account number along with original CNIC or passport to 
authen�cate his/her iden�ty. In case of Corporate en�ty, resolu�ons of the Board of 
Directors/Power of a�orney with specimen of nominee shall be produced (unless provided 
earlier) at the �me of mee�ng.

 

b)
 

For appoin�ng of proxies, the individual beneficial owners of CDC shall submit the proxy form as 
per above requirement along with par�cipant ID account/sub-account number together with 
a�ested copy of their CNIC or Passport. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two witnesses with 
their names, addresses and CNIC numbers. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or 
Passport at the �me of mee�ng. In case of Corporate en�ty, resolu�on of the Board of 
Directors/Power of a�orney along with specimen signatures shall be submi�ed (unless submi�ed 
earlier) along with the proxy form.
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